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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors. Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited # B4 % #i
B ) B R A &l (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this annual
report s accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this annual report misleading or deceptive; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this annual report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on the
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

This annual report will be available on the Company’s website http.//www.lfwty.com and will remain on the
“Latest Company Announcements” page on GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for least 7 days from the date
of its posting.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B % 2

Result ¥E
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

INL BN \RETT ARBTT AR¥TE

Revenue N 43,385 38,617 31,179 24,409
Profit before taxation B B AT & A 35,300 13,895 20,716 17,909
Income tax expense FriG i X (7,053) (6,772) (4,523) (3,578)

Profit and total comprehensive RARIEB AES
income for the year attributable  FE & K2 M|

to owners of the Company I % 4 8 28,247 7,123 16,193 14,331
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As of 31 December
®W12A318
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

LB AREBETIT ARBTIT ARETE

Total assets BEE 220,963 176,060 135,808 189,191

Total liabilities FEN=Ri 92,033 87,633 80,660 150,236
Total equity attributable to owners 772 ®]#E A A FEAS

of the Company B 128,930 88,427 55,148 38,955

Financial Statistics Bt 7 & 5t

2018 2017 2016 2015

20185 20174 20164 20154

Current Ratio’ TR E) E R 5.2 2.4 1.7 1.1

Gearing ratio (%)2 EEBGELLE(%)? 41.7 49.8 59.4 79.4

Return on total assets (%)? 48 & FE B 7R (%)? 12.8 4.1 11.9 7.6

Return on sales (%) £ 0] 7R K (%)* 65.1 18.5 51.9 58.7

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £ 5



Financial Summary

B E

Key Financial Data FEHBEE
2017 2016 2015
20174 20164 20154
RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR
Earnings per shares — basic® TR & R — FEAS 0.028 0.009 0.022 0.019
Net assets value per shares® REEFES 0.129 0.108 0.074 0.052
Notes: B 5
1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities. 1 RBLERDERDEERARDEEFTE -
2. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities by total assets. 2. EEABBLRERNRBEBERUNEEETE -
3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the profit for the year 3 REERRDEFANRFBRANBREERTE -

by total assets.
4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by 4. HELBBREDRFNGNRASEBTE -

revenue.
5. Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to 5. BRENTDIEARRAFEEG AR FREN R AF
owners of the Company for the year by weighted average number of NEETERR 2 METHEAE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

6. Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the net assets by 6. BREEFEDNRFEERUNFABETEBR
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. ZINETHEGE BEFEIERLEERBEAEZ -
Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
THEHRESE

Dear honourable shareholders,

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in
the sale of burial plots, provision of other burial-related
services and provision of cemetery maintenance services.

ENVEHHRER:

REZFR AEEFEXRESHEEY RUEEGEEHEBER

BREBEZRS -

Zhao Ying,

Non-executive Director and Chairman

HE FRTEERIR

Dear Shareholders,

Hello, everyone! After winter leaves and spring arrives, the grass has
grown long, and the warbler has flown away while the willows
becomes green with flowers blossom. With the arrival of spring, the
Company has steadily entered the second year after listing. To begin
with, please allow me to greet friends from different sectors of the
society with all the best wishes, on behalf of the Company’s Board
and myself!

| am pleased to present, on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”), the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

We have grown substantially and successfully increased our publicity
in the industry since our inception in 2007. In 2018, the revenue of
the Group amounted to RMB43.4 million, representing a growth
reaching 12.3% (2017: RMB38.6 million) compared to 2017. Profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Group increased from RMB7.1
million in 2017 to RMB28.2 million in 2018.

The Company has continued to deepen its core business, improved
the service quality and maintained the good performance. The
effective expansion of the business, continuous optimization of
internal management, and the continuous upgrade of the quality
services have led to strong growth in our core competitiveness. We
have also paid more attention to the cemetery environment and
promote green environmental protection. The cemetery is similar to
a well-designed park with flowers cluster and green everywhere. The
environment with water, forest and modern architectures everywhere
give relaxation and peace to the visitors.

BEMNSMBR

ARG REFR ERER  BYIHLEZ - FERIE
MeHBEFERNNTSE RARSEAT LM
BHNE_EFE-BL SAMFERRRRAES
BEYNKBEALE MERRE KREELE SRH
REA R E AR |

RAABRETHEBME (2R ERAR([EQF])
EZ([BEE)MAREZARAREHEBE AR
(IR EBE])HE2018F12A31B L EEHK
BIZRAMBHRE -

B2007F Al Pt AR K PR AE - EITEAKDY
TR THRE -2018F » AR EWAET A
R #4348 8 JT 0 820174 1 K #12.3% (2017
F:ARB3I86EEIT) - A% EREEN A
2017 AR B718 & TIE N E2018F M) A R
282B &L °

ARBERBEOEY  RABERE  RER
FEE EHNARAR  NHERHBFEBIE
BEBHOTHARERORFRLNEIHE -
BMEMTERERSE SEHKEBRR EEH
P ORI AR - EEBE  REET Bk
5 MAEE BRI - AR E RETE
EBHRE -
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TREREE

On the basis of improving the Company’s core business capabilities,
we will not neglect our initial goal and continue to provide our
service with good-will and love so that we can spread the love
through charity with the power of an enterprise. We have visited
welfare homes, apartments for elderly, and promoted the Chinese
fine tradition of “respecting the old and loving the young, assisting
the weak and the disabled” by raising the public awareness of these
elderly and children so that more caring and kindness can be spread
to them.

In 2018, the Company's business continued to develop steadily,
achieving its goals and its result up to now, thanks to the support of
all sectors of the society and every staff member of us. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all the shareholders, partners, customers and
suppliers for their trust and continued support in our Group; | would
also like to express my sincere gratitude to the management and
staff for their dedications and contribution over the years.

In 2019, the Company will continuously improve its core
competitiveness and service level and expand its business scope with
its leading business advantages, integration capabilities and capital
strength. It will continue to promote the traditional filial piety
culture of the Chinese, pay attention to ecological development,
green development and strengthen its brand value. It will also
deepen its cultivation in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei (”Jing-Jin-Ji"”) core
area and promote the modernization of China’s funeral industry with
the funeral projects layout over the country.

With the increasing number of aging population in the society, the
population mortality rate has been increasing with the potential of
the funeral market. The integration of the Jing-Jin-Ji megapolis has
increasingly affected the political, economic, and cultural aspects of
the surrounding areas with obvious integration of the funeral
industry, which is both an opportunity and a challenge for us.

In the face of opportunities, we are looking for suitable cemeteries
and related projects in the Jing-Jin-Ji megapolis positively. We will
expand our business in the target acquisition of upstream and
downstream industries in a prudent and professional manner and
strive to cooperate with funeral homes in many regions. We will also
seize any opportunities for strategic alliance and acquisition
throughout the burial industry chain. Through continuous investment
with capital, a diversified development system will be formed to
enable the rapid growth of the Company.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &
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THEREE

In the face of challenges, we will improve our employees’
professional skills and service standards through professional training.
The process management will be standardized and set up from the
perspective of humanity, showing humanistic solicitude and providing
diversified and personalized ceremonial services. Apart from that, the
landscape of the cemetery will be enhanced with less characteristic
of a cemetery, displaying arboriculture and green ecology in order to
create a modern garden-style cemetery. In response to the call of the
state, we will promote reform in funeral and burial through
implementing a series of measures such as installation of the
environmentally friendly incinerators; and green civilized burial
culture so that the needs of burial customs and the requirements for
environmental protection will be satisfied at the same time. Land-
saving ecological burial will be introduced to resolve the problem of
land shortage. In the process of promoting modernization of the
burial industry, we undertake the social responsibility of an excellent
burial enterprise.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to work hard to
deepen its core business of burial by keep developing and innovating
which is in line with the tenet of “respecting life, returning to
nature, displaying humanity, and eternal commemoration”. Under
this tenet, we will manage the harmonious relationship between man
and nature with care, promote the construction of ecological
civilization, and shoulder our responsibilities as an enterprise in the
society and industry. We will also expand the influence of the brand,
leading the industry to a benign development, ensuring the
Company will continue to improve its service quality and economic
benefits so that we can return the majority of shareholders with the
best performance.

Chairman: Zhao Ying
15 March 2019, Hong Kong

EHEE  RAKBEBERENFI ESET
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Mt EaRE-
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FBEOHEARR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEREBNWE DM

Business Review

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the sale of
burial plots, provision of other burial-related services and provision of
cemetery maintenance services in Langfang.

Sales of burial plots and provision of other burial-related
services

Burial services were the largest component of our revenue,
representing 92.2% of our revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: 92.1%).

The burial services market in Langfang is concentrated. Demand for
our burial service and growth in our revenue are driven by the
overall demand for burial services in Langfang and the Jing-Jin-Ji
megalopolis at large. We believe our reputation, quality of services,
and well-maintained and conveniently located facilities allow us to
compete effectively in Langfang. The Company is optimistic that this
operation will be continuously developed and expanded.

Provision of cemetery maintenance services

We provide ongoing cemetery maintenance services as an integral
part of our burial services to maintain our beautiful landscaped
cemetery. Customers pay for maintenance fees upfront when they
sign the sales contracts to purchase the burial plots. Our revenue
from cemetery maintenance was RMB3.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB3.1 million).

Strengths
Burial services provider strategically located in Langfang

Through our longstanding presence in Langfang, we believe that we
have accumulated valuable knowledge about the local customs and
preferences in terms of burial practices. Leveraging our experience,
local knowledge and market reputation, and supported by the
available land parcels within our cemetery and the broadened
customer base as well as the long-standing stickiness of our
customers, we believe we are able to continue to grow our business
by making additional burial plots based on customer demand and
providing better services. Subject to strict regulatory restrictions and
entry barriers and government zoning policies, we therefore believe
our well-established operation model presents us a considerable first-
mover advantage over potential competitors, assisting us to
penetrate the burial services market in Langfang and the Jing-Jin-Ji
megalopolis at large.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &
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Comprehensive burial services to satisfy diversified
customer needs

Instead of basic burial services which only have limited scope for
unique designs or customization, we offer diversified burial services
to customers with different preferences and budgets and attract local
customers who are willing to pay a price premium for unique
designs or customization and customers from neighboring cities
where affordable burial sites have become increasingly sparse. We
can provide more diversified burial services to satisfy customers’
various needs with high-quality services of different types;
meanwhile, we are able to cater to different preferences of
customers by designing diversified traditional and art cemetery, as
well as providing various types of burial services, such as tree burial
and flower bed burial.

Brand associated with professionalism and commitment to
social responsibility

We operate our cemetery under the brand “E1#{&E (Wan Tong
Yuan)” and cooperate with a network of third-party funeral service
providers in Langfang which refer customers to us. We believe that
our brand exemplifies our professionalism and commitment to social
responsibility. We strive to provide professional burial services to our
customers. To this end, we provide on-the-job training to all
employees, with a strong focus on cultivating their moral character.
We believe that employees with sufficient industry experience and a
virtuous character are better suited to attending customers in
emotional stress with professionalism and delicacy. We also keep
abreast of market changes and customer demand from our daily
operations.

We have organised various charity activities, including visits to elderly
home on Chongyang Festival and participation in a social welfare
organization “Love and Companionship”. We focus more on
palliative care for the elderly. With the improvement of corporate
reputation, we also emphasis more on our role as a revolutionary
education base to promote the spirit of revolutionary tradition and to
educate the young generation. We are also committed to taking
more social responsibilities and responsible for the placement and
storage of cremains transferred from urban villages or anonymous
cremains referred by social welfare institutions.

Committed, experienced and stable management team

We believe that our committed, professional, experienced and stable
management team enables us to form a vision of long-term
development, closely follow the market trends and customer
preferences with industry insights to adjust our business strategies
and execute our business initiatives on a consistent basis. We
provide professional training, scientific and reasonable remuneration
system and career path, and attractive benefits package for all
employees to achieve health and stable development in our team.
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We aspire to strengthen our market position in Langfang and
expand our business in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis and beyond
through the following strategies.

Strengthen our market position in Langfang

We have set up service sites at Langfang Funeral Home, and
assigned specialists to introduce cemetery-related services, deal with
pre-service business and promote to and identify potential
customers. We plan to further develop our cemetery, especially the
environment in cemetery, and upgrade our products. For example,
we will further develop the undeveloped area within our cemetery,
upgrade our facilities and equipment and improve the environment
in the cemetery. We will cater to customers’ various needs and
preferences by providing more elegant environment with warmer,
more diversified and person-centered services. Moreover, through
contact and communications with more clients and institutions of
elderly services to invite more clients to our events and to organize
recreation and sports events for the elderly, we will strengthen our
market position in Langfang.

Expand our business scope to provide funeral services

We generated substantially all of our revenues from burial services
during the current and prior years. We have forged stable business
relationship with a number of local funeral services providers which
refer customers to us. We believe, however, that one-stop-shop
services that integrate funeral and burial services are able to confer
a significant competitive advantage, as bereaved families generally
prefer dealing with fewer service providers to ensure a seamless and
smooth experience at each stage of the process. We will strengthen
our cooperation with the community, enterprise unions and
institutions of elderly services to expand the coverage of our funeral
services.
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Tap further into the burial services market in the Jing-Jin-
Ji megalopolis

Leveraging on our strategic location in Langfang and proximity to
regional hubs in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis, we plan to tap further
into the burial services market in this region, especially in Beijing,
where affordable burial sites have become increasingly sparse and
local residents become increasingly mobile with the integration of
communities and the construction of a web of high-speed intercity
transportation infrastructure. We plan to devote more marketing
resources to serving the neighboring cities and develop further
cooperation with local funeral service providers as our business
partners. We target to set up cooperation relationships with more
Beijing funeral service providers in 2019 and 2020 to promote our
burial services locally. Meanwhile, we plan to cooperate with local
funeral homes and hospital mortuaries to access bereaved families in
a more direct and more prompt way, so that we can react
immediately to provide high-quality funeral and burial services for
our customers.

Provide columbarium settlement service, actively
cooperating and supporting the government’s city
demolishment and transformation plan

The rapid development of Langfang benefits from the overall
development of the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis and is the process of
economic and civilized construction and development at the same
time. While carrying out the urban planning and construction, and
settling the villagers’ migration, the government and the
development department can fully consider the needs of the
deceased relatives in the villagers. As a licensed cemetery, Wan Tong
Yuan provides columbarium collective storage services in support of
the government’s demolishment and transformation plan. It can also
generate income for the Company. In addition to the sales of three
columbarium niches halls in 2018, we will continue to actively
cooperate with and support the government’s city demolishment and
transformation plan, and provide columbarium settlement services for
columbarium in the demolishment and transformation plan areas in
the future. With the development of the city, it can’t be ruled out
that there will be more demand for collective storage of
columbarium, which will bring us better returns.
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Pursue strategic alliance and acquisition opportunities

We have built our business so far primarily through organic growth.
Going forward, we intend to selectively acquire, invest in or enter
into strategic partnerships with other death care services providers,
including funeral service providers and cemetery operators. We base
our selection criteria on, among other things, brand name, location,
land cost, land reserves and profitability. We generally favor
cemeteries located in wealthy and densely populated provinces,
where there is a higher demand for high-quality death care services.
In particular, we seek to prioritize business expansion opportunities
with death care services providers in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis and
bring synergy to our current operations. Meanwhile, we will also
cooperate with potential acquisition or investment in other regions.
We are committed to seeking development in both upstream and
downstream industries of burial services, i.e. palliative care industry,
to expand our business opportunities and to identify strategic
alliance. Together we will achieve industrial integration from birth to
death and from aging to burial for customers of all ages. Save for
above disclosed, there were no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets at the date
of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review
Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 was substantially
generated from: (i) sale of burial plots, which includes the right to
use the burial plots and headstones and other ancillary products to
be used on the burial plots; (ii) other burial-related services such as
the organization and conducting of interment rituals, the design,
construction and landscaping of the burial plots, and the engraving
of inscriptions and ceramic photographs on the headstones; and (iii)
cemetery maintenance services. The table below sets forth a
breakdown of our revenue:

Bt 7 B B8

W 25
HFEZ2018F12A318 Lt FE W KD %K
B:(O)EHMEE BEENEREMERKLREM
FRNEMREE R (VEMBEEEBERE 0
MZHRBRTLEEANANEWN R BER
S8 REBHABXERBEERSEEERE
DiNEEGER - TR RMAOUZHA

Year ended 31 December

BZNRANBLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
% of total % of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
W 2= 1l 48 Uk 22 Wz 1HBY =R
(GU R0 % (RMB’000) %
(AR®¥T ) (ANRETFIT)
Burial Services BEER
Sales of burial plots HEEM 37,387 86.2% 32,170 83.3%
Provision of other burial-related R EMBELE
services EEN RS 2,619 6.0% 3,396 8.8%
40,006 92.2% 35,566 92.1%
Provision of cemetery maintenance 32 it £ B 4 # R 7%
services 3,379 7.8% 3,051 7.9%
43,385 100.0% 38,617 100.0%

Benefiting from the regional economic growth, we have grown
substantially since our inception in 2007. Further to a strong growth
in the prior year, the Group’s revenue was increased by 12.3% from
RMB38.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB43.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, primarily driven by an
increase in revenue from burial services. The Group's revenue from
burial services increased by 12.5% from RMB35.6 million in 2017 to
RMB40.0 million in 2018, primarily due to the sales of three
columbarium niches halls with a total saleable area of 288 square
metres (2017: nil). In addition, the increase in revenue was also due
to the increase in the average selling price of burial plots.

B R LB L K - B 820074 A 9 DA SR 2%
RAVE -BEFHRANER  AEEAKEH2017
FHRARMK3S6EETLIEMI23%E2018FHAR
a3 4B 8L TEZEHNBEERBWEIE M - A
SEEBRZERBHKZH2017FHARYEIS6H S
T IN12.5% 22018F M AR L0088 L £ 2
EHRHEZHEREE  HEMRE B288F X
(2017F : ) - 4N BEANMHFHEEN LA DR
hmig kR RE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

s =R E N SR

Cost of sales and services

Cost of sales and services consist primarily of the costs we incur in
relation to the provision of our services. Our cost of sales and
services was at RMB7.0 million in 2018 (2017: RMB7.0 million), with
a slight decrease of 0.7%.

iHE X AR 7 K A
HEMRERAETEEFERMMREREEEDN
AR o BAI2018F M & R RER A B ARET.O
BETQRO7F: ARBIOBE&E L) BT &
0.7% °

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174
Cost of % of total Cost of % of total
sales and cost of sales sales and cost of sales
services and services services and services
HER ERHEER HER EBHEER
R % BX 2 R % BX 2 BiR 75 B, 7 BiR 75 B, 7R
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %

(AE® T ) (ANR®EF )

Burial services B R 6,585 94.7% 6,379 91.1%
Cemetery maintenance BE#%E 369 5.3% 621 8.9%
6,954 100.0% 7,000 100.0%

The Group's cost of sales and services for burial service increased by
3.2% from RMB6.4 million in 2017 to RMB6.6 million in 2018,
primarily due to the business growth, partly offset by the
enhancement of service process standardization. The Group’s cost of
sales and services for cemetery maintenance decreased from RMBO.6
million in 2017 to RMBO0.4 million in 2018.

Our cost of sales and services for burial services include (i) the
headstone cost, which represented the cost of the headstones used
for burial plots; (ii) land acquisition cost, which represented the cost
to acquire land for development into our cemetery; (iii) columbarium
niches halls construction costs, which represented the cost of
construction of columbarium niches halls; (iv) burial-related costs,
which represented costs for designs, headstone engraving, props and
offerings for interment rituals, labor and other expenses incidental to
the provision of burial service; and (v) others, which represented
land development and depreciation and amortization expenses
relating to burial facilities. Our cemetery maintenance costs
represented the costs for the ongoing landscaping and maintenance
of our cemetery.
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EF K& EF =

EF B U w08 8 B KBRS K A o B FI2018F &
2017F M EFD A AAREICAAETRARE
31.6B&7TT°

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit represents revenue less cost of sales and services. Our
gross profit for 2018 and 2017 was RMB36.4 million and RMB31.6
million, respectively.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
Gross  Gross profit Gross Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
ER EF= EH EFIE
(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR¥% T x) (ANRBFT)
Burial services BER% 33,421 83.5% 29,187 82.1%
Cemetery maintenance HEEME 3,010 89.1% 2,430 79.7%
36,431 84.0% 31,617 81.9%

Our overall gross profit margin for 2018 and 2017 was 84.0% and
81.9%, respectively. Our relatively high gross profit margins during
the year were primarily due to (i) the relatively high gross profit
margins in the burial industry; (i) our ability to provide high-quality
burial services; and (iii) the relatively low land acquisition cost for our
cemetery.

The gross profit margin of the burial services increased slightly,
mainly due to the increase in average selling price and the effective
cost management of the Group. The gross profit margin of the
provision of cemetery maintenance services increased by
approximately 10% year-on-year, mainly due to the Group’s
reduction of other greening sporadic expenses in 2018.

Other income

The Group’s other income increased by 133.8% from RMB4.4 million
in 2017 to RMB10.3 million in 2018. This increase was primarily due
to an increase in dividends income from financial assets at FVTPL in
2018, and the government grants for listed enterprises of RMB3.0
million issued by the Langfang Finance Bureau in 2018 (2017: nil),
which have no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this
income.

Distribution and selling expenses

Our distribution and selling expenses increased by 21.7% from
RMB4.6 million for 2017 to RMB5.6 million for 2018. This increase
was primarily due to an increase in salary and staff costs driven by
the business growth.
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Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 76.3% from RMB3.2
million for 2017 to RMB5.7 million for 2018. This increase was
primarily due to the increase in professional fees subsequent to the
listing and an increase in salary and staff costs.

Initial public offering expenses

The Group incurred initial public offering expenses of RMB14.0
million in 2017. No such expenses was incurred in 2018.

Profit before taxation

As a result of the above, our profit before taxation increased by
154.0% from RMB13.9 million for 2017 to RMB35.3 million for
2018.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 4.1% from RMB6.8 million for
2017 to RMB7.1 million for 2018, generally consistent with the
increase of our revenue.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our profit and total comprehensive income for the year increased by
296.6% from RMB7.1 million for 2017 to RMB28.2 million for 2018.
Our net profit margin increased from 18.4% for 2017 to 65.1% for
2018, primarily due to the fees and expenses incurred from
professional advisers in connection with the preparation of the listing
in 2017.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
calculated based on the weighted average number of 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares was RMB0.028 (basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017: RMB0.009).

Cash Flow

Our cash and cash equivalents increased by RMB109.7 million to
RMB191.4 million as at 31 December 2018 from RMB81.7 million as
at 31 December 2017, principally attributable to: (i) the net cash
inflow of RMB24.9 million from our operating activities; (ii) the net
cash inflow of RMB83.6 million from investing activities which was
primarily due to proceeds from disposal of interest in the Suburban
Rural Credit Cooperatives of Langfang City at a consideration of
RMB76.0 million; partially offset by (iii) the net cash outflow of
RMBO0.8 million from financing activities.

Pledge of assets

There was no charge on the Group's assets as at 31 December 2018
and 2017.
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Inventories

Our inventories primarily consist of burial plots, headstones and
others. The related carrying amounts of the cemetery assets
attributable to the burial plots are transferred to inventory upon the
commencement of development of cemetery assets into burial plots
with the intention of sale in the ordinary course of business.
Headstones are recognised as inventory when they are contracted for
sale and set up in the cemetery. Inventories are transferred to cost
when the customer obtains the right to use the burial plot. Our
inventories decreased by 43.4% from RMB3.5 million as at 31
December 2017 to RMB2.0 million as at 31 December 2018,
primarily due to the decrease in the number of headstones
contracted and ready for sale but yet to be transferred to the
customers.

Prepayments and other receivables

Our prepayments and other receivables remained relatively stable at
RMBO0.3 million and RMBO.5 million as at 31 December 2017 and
2018, respectively.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables decreased by 55.3% from RMB21.2
million as at 31 December 2017 to RMB9.5 million as at 31
December 2018, primarily due to the decrease of advances from
customers reclassified to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018
from the application of IFRS 15. As at 31 December 2017, advances
from customers amounted to RMB9.1 million.

Contract liabilities

In prior years, contract liabilities was recorded in deferred income
and advances from customers within trade and other payables.
Contract liabilities represent the obligations to transfer burial plots
and cemetery maintenance services in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy and the nature of the business.

As at 31 December 2018, current contract liabilities amounted to
RMB9.1 million (as at 31 December 2017 after the adjustments from
the application of IFRS 15: RMB12.4 million). The decrease in current
contract liabilities is mainly due to recognition of revenue during the
year.

As at 31 December 2018, non-current contract liabilities amounted
to RMB52.7 million (as at 31 December 2017 after the adjustments
from the application of IFRS 15: RMB48.5 million). The increase in
non-current contract liabilities is mainly due to increase in advances
from customers during the current year.
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Deferred income

Deferred income as at 31 December 2017 represented the portion of
the payment received in connection with the provision of cemetery
maintenance that has not been recognised as revenue in accordance
with the revenue recognition policy and the nature of the business,
and was reclassified to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 from
the application of IFRS 15.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no change to
the capital structure of the Company.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2018, we had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB191.4 million (2017: RMB81.7 million). We have
financed our working capital, capital expenditures and other capital
requirements primarily through income generated from our
operations. In the future, we expect to fund our capital
expenditures, working capital and other capital requirements from
cash generated from our operations, net proceeds from listing on
GEM and bank and other borrowings.

Gearing ratio

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through payment
of dividends, issue of new shares and repurchase of shares as well as
issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group, being total
liabilities to total assets, was 41.7% (2017: 49.8%), which indicates
the Group's healthy liquidity position.

Employee remuneration and relations

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 62 employees
(2017: 64 employees). The Group provides employees with
competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level. In
addition, the Group also provides various training courses to
enhance the employees’ skills and capabilities in all aspects.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had operating lease
commitments receivable of approximately RMB0.4 million (2017:
RMBO.6 million).
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitments in
respect of purchased equipment (2017: approximately RMBO0.5
million).

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

On 24 August 2018, Langfang Wantong Cemetery Co., Ltd. (BB¥
ERMAZEABBRADA) (the “Vendor”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Langfang City Huanmei Landscaping
Engineering Co., Ltd. (BB MR EBE M T2 B R 2 &) (the
"Purchaser”) entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
(the “SPA"), pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire the sale shares, being 5.78% of the total
registered capital of Suburban Rural Credit Cooperatives of Langfang
City (BB M 2B 21 {5 & EBt4L) (the “Target Company”), and
the Vendor has agreed to sell the abovementioned sale shares (the
“Disposal”) at the total consideration of RMB76,000,000.

Completion of the Disposal took place on the completion date in
accordance with terms and conditions of the SPA. Immediately after
the completion, the Group ceased to hold any interest in the Target
Company.

Further details of the Disposal were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 August 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 September 2018.

Save as foresaid, there were no other material acquisition or disposal
of significant investment during the year (2017: nil).

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business is principally denominated in Renminbi. As
certain bank deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars, therefore,
the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. No currency
hedging arrangement had been made by the Group during the year.
The Directors have positive attitude to regular monitor the exposure
to foreign exchange so as to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk
to minimal.
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company is committed to establish and maintain good corporate
governance practices and procedures. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Board has adopted its own code on corporate
governance practices which incorporate all the code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The Directors
will continue to review its corporate governance practices in order to
enhance its corporate governance standard and ensure further
standards be put in place by reference to the recommended best
practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

This Corporate Governance Report is to outline the major principles
of the Company’s corporate governance. Shareholders are
encouraged to make their views known to the Group if they have
issues with the Company’s corporate governance and to directly raise
any matters of concern to the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”).

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code during the Year.

Our Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising one non-
executive Director (“NED"), two executive Directors (“EDs”) and
three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). The powers and
duties of our Board include convening general meetings and
reporting our Board’s work at our Shareholders’ meetings,
determining our business and investment plans, preparing our annual
financial budgets and final reports, formulating proposals for profit
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association. The
composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report was as follows:

EEEMAREARFEE2018F12A318 IEF
EMEETRRE -

ARBBMNDEBIREZRTCETAERLER -
HZE2018F12A3BHLFE EECEHEMER
G EETARAERTH - HA B X TGEM:E
HEMRA(TGEMEMAR DKM+ AT %
ERTA(EEATUDMATABR - A2
RESBEERTECEERESR UREAED
EEREE UHENABENEER2ZEER
EERE T HEEE-

AEEERMEMARRREEE NI ERA -
WARBBRERNARECEEREFEFEMHEE
AABRAAEERLESN  TANEERES
SXFE(EFDELEMZEINSEE-

REZE2018F12A31BIEFE  AQRAIBETD
EERTRIFTE 2 SFRES -

EECHRBH A NBRESHAR  BE—RIIERTE
B MERTESELN R BURITEE -BH
ENEILRBEESRBAARERGTRABRRERS
rtERESSeNITE ETEHREREFNE R
VEGHHRBEREFRE - SlTEADIRES
UERITFEABERREA AR FTOEMED -
Brae MBEE - TR EHAE £2018F12A31H IEF
EERBEAREOHEETGHRERE

Name of Director Position

EEpnE B

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director and Chairman
ik HFRTEERER

Li Xingying Executive Director

FE A BITES

Huang Guangming Executive Director

g HITES

Cheung Ying Kwan Independent non-executive Director
o & 1 BIFNITES

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Independent non-executive Director
ok BIYFHNTTES

Choi Hon Keung, Simon Independent non-executive Director
FE 0 BIYFHNITES
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There is no relationship between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors do not have financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. The
biographical details of the Directors and other senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages from 33 to 37 of this annual
report.

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under the GEM Listing Rules among the
Directors. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all of the independent non-executive Directors
and the Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions, financial performance and monitoring business
and performance. The Board provides high-level guidance and
effective oversight of the Management and holds regular meetings to
discuss the Group’s businesses and operations. All Directors carry out
their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
involving conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the management team. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board to
ensure that they accommodate the needs of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole. The Board
also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
will review the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with
measurable objectives. A diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, industry knowledge and experience,
education, race, age, gender, background and other qualities of
directors. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Company has adopted a general dividend policy that aims to
provide the shareholders of the Company out of the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders in any financial year. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account, inter alia, the
following factors: (i) the actual and expected financial results of the
Group; (ii) economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group; (iii) the Group’s business strategies,
including future cash commitments and investment needs to sustain
the long-term growth aspect of the business; (iv) the current and
future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements of the
Group; and any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquires of the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the period from the date of listing up to the date
of this report.

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are carried out by different individuals. The role of Chairman
is held by Ms. Zhao Ying, and the role of Chief Executive Officer is
held by Mr. Yu Minghua. The Chairman provides leadership for the
Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. The Chief
Executive Officer has the delegated power to monitor the daily
operation and management of the Company. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure of the Board and the need of
appointment of a suitable candidate to perform the role of
Chairman.
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In compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three INEDs representing more than one-third of the Board
and at least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The functions of INEDs are primarily to bring an independent
judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts at board
meetings.

Each of INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence by
reference to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent during the Year.

Each of the EDs is engaged on a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a
letter of appointment for a term of three years to the NED and each
of the INEDs.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are governed by the Articles of Association. The
Company has established a Nomination Committee which is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of the Directors and assessing
the independence of the INEDs.

The Articles of Association provides that any Director so appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual
general meeting (“AGM") of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one third shall be the number of retiring Directors. The
Directors to retire in each year shall be those who have been in
office longest since their last re-election or appointment but, as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. During the year ended December
31, 2018, all Directors, including Ms. Zhao Ying, Ms. Li Xingying,
Mr. Huang Guangming, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan, Dr. Wong Wing
Kuen, Albert, Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon had studied the reading
materials relevant to corporate governance and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings
are held when significant events or important issues are required to
be discussed and resolved.

The following table indicates the number of Board, committee and
general meetings during the financial year and the number of
attendance by each of the Directors:

BRECEEBTATANKRIEASEK  2BESE
ELHBETEER UBRESEYTHAE
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MEME URRESHESSRHEMNSHEED
BB

EFREMGE AR REERH R R
UEBRAEARAEBERBREE - BETR
RAREAFHEAEEF AN BETENGH -

TREVNEFE ZEERBERAERAMERF
ERTHNRE ARBEENHERE:

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BTEHERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Name ®H Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EEe ERZEEE ¥FHEEe RezEg BREXE
Non-executive Director and Chairman FHTESHEE
Zhao Ying fick ] 5/5 — 1”n n 1”n
Executive Directors HTES
Li Xingying THE 5/5 — — — 1
Huang Guangming =EH 5/5 — — _ 1”1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Cheung Ying Kwan R 5/5 7 10 " "
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert B 5/5 17 n — 1n
Choi Hon Keung, Simon BER 5/5 6/7 — 1" 1
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The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All the Board committees should report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing rules. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Dr. Wong Wing Kuen,
Albert, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wong Wing Kuen,
Albert. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist our
Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of our Group, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors, reviewing our
financial information and disclosures, to oversee the audit process, to
develop and review our policies and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During 2018, the Audit Committee held 7 meetings to review and
discuss the relevant quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements, results announcements and reports of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Dr.
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Ms. Zhao
Ying. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Dr. Wong
Wing Kuen, Albert. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include (but without limitation): (i) making
recommendations to the Directors regarding our policy and structure
for the remuneration of all our Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policies; (i) making recommendations
to our Board on the remuneration packages of our Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to our Board’s
corporate goals and objectives.
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The Company has adopted the model to delegate the remuneration
committee to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During 2018, the Remuneration Committee meet one time to review
the remuneration policies and remuneration packages of the
Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5.2
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Zhao Ying, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Mr.
Choi Hon Keung, Simon. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Zhao Ying. The primary function of the
Nomination Committee is to make recommendations to our Board on
appointment of members of our Board. During 2018, the
Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and concluded that the members of
the Board have possessed the expertise and independence to carry
out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of quarterly, interim and annual reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor on

the financial statements of the Group are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this Annual Report.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors, and reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report contained in the Company’s annual
reports.

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, in respect of audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB930,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid/payable for
the services provided by the Company's auditor are set out as
follows:

Services rendered

RENRE

EXSRARTOEERRE  fladlE ks
ARRBEREBRREER BRILEREER
SRERENEILFEZEXER RIMEER
ARAHEETARREERETENRRRER -
HE A REREANRERESNRT T
ARBAARRBREEEATANGRBER LA
RAFHRAMBEEERBRSANKESE -

PEE2018FNAB I FEEZRBEH B
AR RD B AZ BREM & F 42 %8 B A R #930,0007T °

REZ2018F12A31MB I FE AR A Z A
RENRBEN/ENEBZOT

Fees paid/payable
e ENER

Statutory audit services
EEBERRY

Non-audit services

FEZR

RMB930,000
A R #930,0007T

RMB560,000
A K #560,0007T

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management is set out by band as follows:

HE2018FNAHIEFEE SREEEKER
MR HEEZM T

Number of employees

EEAHY
2018 2017
20185 20174
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000 7T 5 3
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The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance, and review of the risk management and internal
control system and an effective risk management and internal
control system enhances the Group’s ability in achieving business
objectives, safeguarding assets, complying with applicable laws and
regulations and contributes to the effectiveness and efficiency of its
operations. The senior management reviews and evaluates the
control process and monitors any risk factors on a regular basis and
reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a comprehensive budgeting, information reporting and
performance monitoring system. The Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and the Group's
risk management and internal control system annually, covering all
key control, including financial, operational and compliance. The
result of review will be reported to the Board and some measures
would be proposed if there is any area for improvement. During the
Year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and considered them
effective and adequate.

Mr. Lam Koon Fai resigned as the company secretary of the
Company on 21 February 2019. On the same day, Mr. Tang Chun
Man Adam (“Mr. Tang”) was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Tang are set out under
the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders of the Company and the
Board. An AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board.
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Right to Convene EGM and putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Each general meeting, other than an AGM, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM"). EGM shall be convened on
the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two Months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

EGM shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing. The
written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong marked with the attention of the
company secretary, and such may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Shareholders may put forward enquires to the Board in writing to
the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company.

Enquiry Contact:
By email:
By post:

admin@lfwty.com

Room 907B, 9th Floor,

China Merchants Tower,

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Attention: Public Relationship
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The Company has maintained a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders and investors through various channels,
including, among others, the Company’s annual, interim and
quarterly reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the
Company’s website at www.Ifwty.com. The Company also holds
press conferences from time to time at which the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Group are available to answer
questions regarding the Group’s business and performance.

The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
and as indicated in the corporate responsibility policy and various
affiliate proceedings to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the propagation of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about the due compliance with all policies regarding the
inside information with the latest regulatory updates.

The Company has adopted the memorandum and articles of
association on 7 September 2017 for Listing. Save to above, for the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Board does not aware of any
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) consists of six Directors,
comprising one non-executive Director, two executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.

ZHAO Ying (5 58)
Non-executive Director and Chairman

Ms. ZHAO Ying (#%8), aged 48, joined our Group in January 2017
and was further designated as a non-executive Director in March
2017. Ms. Zhao serves as a director of Langfang City Property
Development Co., Ltd. (EEZhm k@ FE b EFEBR QA since
February 2008 and a non-executive director of China VAST Industrial
Urban Development Company Limited (F R EREEXTMEZEREAR
‘A 7)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
6166 since August 2014.

LI Xingying (Z i 58)
Executive Director

Ms. LI Xingying (Z=#258), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director in March 2017. Ms. Li has 16 years of experience in burial
services industry. Ms. Li joined our Group in November 2007. Before
joining our Group, she served as a clerk and cashier of Wan Tong
Yuan from March 1999 to September 2000 and a salesperson in
Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (37 i1 35 [& = 1 25 59
ZLAHM AR from September 2000 to March 2003. From March
2003 to October 2005, Ms. Li served as the marketing manager of
Wan Tong Yuan, being responsible for the overall management of
the customers’ services center and business administration thereof.
Ms. Li served as the general manager of Wan Tong Yuan from
October 2005 to November 2007 and the executive general manager
of Langfang Wantong from November 2007 to May 2015. Ms. Li has
been the sole executive director, legal representative and general
manager of Langfang Wantong since May 2015. In November 2016,
Ms. Li took the 35th Training Class of Modern Cemetery in China
and President Workshop (R =+ AEZ2ERARAEZLEIIEEL
F A& 3E), which was organized by China Funeral Association (%
BEME).
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HUANG Guangming (& & BA)
Executive Director

Mr. HUANG Guangming (Z E#J), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director in March 2017. Mr. Huang has more than seven
years of experience in burial services industry. Mr. Huang rejoined
our Group as a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong in
September 2013. Mr. Huang served as the human resources
manager of Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd. (BB¥5
¥ [ = 10 EE 9 3% B FR 2 A1) from June 2004 to November 2007, the
deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong from November 2007
to June 2010 and the general manger of Chengde Yonglun Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (FAfEXx @ F i E R AR A7) from
June 2010 to September 2013. From time to time, Mr. Huang
supervised the operation of the purchasing center of Langfang City
Property Development Co., Ltd. (B M & FEHERZEER QA
during September 2013 and March 2017, which was a part-time
position only.

Mr. Huang received associate (KX=) level education in Marketing
from Hebei University of Science and Technology (it %l A E)
and graduated from the same university in July 2001.

CHEUNG Ying Kwan (3R f& 3)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Kwan (3K f&3#), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director (“INED") in September 2017. Mr.
Cheung has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Mr. Cheung has been the company secretary of China
Mental Resources Utilization Limited (FE & BERFIHAERAF)
from March 2013, (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 1636 since February 2014). Mr. Cheung served as the
financial controller of Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (& 123
REEJRE MR A R]) from March 2006 to August 2013, the qualified
accountant and company secretary of Goldigit Atom-tech Holdings
Limited (& /285 FRHTIZR AR 2 7)) (currently known as Jinchuan
Group International Resources Co. Ltd () EEEHEEREBR A
7)), (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 2362)
from April 2001 to March 2006 and an INED of Beijing
Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd (1t R &7 IF i B85 22
W% BBR A A))(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 1858) from March 2015 to March 2018. Mr. Cheung has been
an INED of the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
including Tian Shan Development (Holding) Limited (X ILZE (42 5%)
B A7]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
2118) since June 2010, Gold-Finance Holdings Limited (£ 12 H
fR 2 d]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
1462) since February 2016, ZACD Group Ltd (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 8313) from December 2017 to
January 2019. Mr. Cheung has been a fellow member of the
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Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since November 2000
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 1995. Mr. Cheung obtained a diploma
in Fabric Manufacturing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in September 1981.

WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (E 7k ##)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (£ 5k #), aged 67, was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of audit committee and the chairman of
remuneration committee in September 2017. Dr. Wong has
approximately 24 years of experience in accounting. Dr. Wong has a
broad range of experience serving as an INED of various listed
companies, including China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited (PEIZFEXEMHEEREBR LA (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 6166) since August
2014, APAC Resources Limited (52 KB JRAB R A A]) (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1104) since July 2004,
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (55X &ERZEREBER 2 F) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 757) since
January 2008, China Merchants Land Limited (@B EER A 7))
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 978) since
June 2012, Capital Finance Holdings Limited (B # & B AR A
A]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8239)
since January 2018, China Medial & HealthCare Group Limited (4 [
B EMIN AR A A]) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 383) since December 2018, and Dexin China Holdings
Company Limited (25 EZ= R B R A F]) (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 2019) since 11 January 2019. He
had been a principal consultant of KND & Co. CPA Limited EE &
STEE R AT AR A E]) from April 1994 to December 2017. Dr. Wong
was appointed a principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited,
Hong Kong Ji& 5. & 5 Al 77 A R A A]) since January 2018.

Dr. Wong received a degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic of the
Philippines in December 2010. Dr. Wong is member of the following
institutions, including: a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators; a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a fellow member of The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong; a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute; a fellow member of Association of International
Accountants; a fellow member of Society of Registered Financial
Planners; a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators; an
associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland;
and a full member of Macau Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants.
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CHOI Hon Keung, Simon (%% 58)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. CHOI Hon Keung, Simon, aged 58, was appointed as an INED in
September, 2017. Mr. Choi has more than seven years of experience
in corporate governance. Mr. Choi served as an INED of Kenford
Group Holdings Limited (J£18 & B =& B R A 7)) (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 0464) from August 2011 to
September 2017, and an INED of Boyaa Interactive International
Limited (B E EHEEER A A]) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 0434) since October 2013. Mr. Choi
obtained a bachelor's degree in Laws from Peking University (3t 3K
&) in 1991 and a master’'s degree in Laws from The University of
London in 1992. Mr. Choi received his Common Professional
Examination Certificate in Laws and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong in June 1994 and September
1995, respectively. Mr. Choi was admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong and the UK in November 1997 and June 1998, respectively.

Our senior management is
management of our business.

responsible for the day-to-day

Mr. YU Minghua (5 BH %)

Mr. YU Minghua (5% B3 %), aged 41, joined our Group in February
2016. Mr. Yu is currently the chief executive officer of our Company
and a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong, being
responsible for product development and business expansion of our
Group. Mr. Yu has more than four years of experience in burial and
funeral services industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yu served as
the deputy general manager of Guangxi Huazuyuan Investment Co.,
Ltd. (BFAEHERE BB A R]) from May 2013 to September 2014
and a deputy project general manager of Puyang Hualong District
Longxiang Cemetery Park Co., Ltd. (EfsmEREEELERER A
ml) from March 2010 to February 2011. From September 2009 to
March 2010, Mr. Yu received a burial services training at Changsha
Social Work College (& & Bk B % 5117 2 Bx).

LIU Fengxue (%I Bl £)

Mr. LIU Fengxue (2Bl £), aged 37, joined our Group in November
2007. Mr. Liu is currently the general administration vice president of
our Company and a deputy general manager of Langfang Wantong,
being responsible for the daily operation and general management
of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 15 years of experience in
logistical support and corporate administration. After joining our
Group, Mr. Liu has been serving as the head of security in Langfang
Wantong since November 2007, and he was promoted as the head
of logistical support department and deputy general manager of
Langfang Wantong in July 2010 and June 2016, respectively. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Liu served as the head of security team of
Lanshuiwan Property Management (E57K/& %) %) of Langfang City
Hengtai Services Co., Ltd. (B8 35 M 18 Z= iR 7% A& BR A 7)) from
November 2002 to November 2007.
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CHU Yunli (&8 & F)

Mr. CHU Yunli (# Z %), aged 47, joined our Group in November
2007. Mr. Chu is currently the financial controller of our Company,
being responsible for the overall management of financial reporting
and cost management of our Group. Mr. Chu has been the financial
controller at Langfang Wantong since he joined our Group. Mr. Chu
has ten years of experience in corporate finance. Mr. Chu attended
correspondence courses (EK#) and received his associate (K=)
degree in Accounting from Beijing Institute of Business (1t & & £B7)
(currently known as Beijing Technology and Business University (35
T ARE)) in July 1997,

GAO Ping (& %)

Ms. GAO Ping (7= 3¥), aged 37, joined our Group in November 2007
and has more than 15 years of experience in customers’ services and
marketing. Ms. Gao is currently the marketing vice president of our
Company and has been the marketing manager of Langfang
Wantong since its establishment, being responsible for the overall
management of the marketing department of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Gao served as the sales executive of
Wantongyuan from October 2005 to November 2007 and the
marketing manager of Langfang Economic and Technological
Development Area Yongsheng Real Estates Development Co., Ltd.
(B3R kA REMEREHBRAA) from November 2003 to
October 2005. Ms. Gao attended correspondence courses (FK#) and
obtained her associate (X %) degree in Physical Education from
Hebei Institute of Physical Education (a4t B2 & Z2F%) in July 2003.

TANG Chun Man Adam (Ef £ x2)

Mr. Tang Chun Man Adam, aged 31, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company on 21
February 2019, being responsible for the overall financial
management of our Group and advising the Board on corporate
government matters. Mr. Tang holds a bachelor's degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experiences in auditing, financial
planning and analysis and accounting.
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Corporate Reorganisation

Pursuant to the reorganization (the “Reorganization”) of the Group
in connection with the listing of the shares on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing”), as explained in the paragraphs headed
"Our Group’s Reorganization” in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganization” in the prospectus (the
"Prospectus”) of the Company dated 14 September 2017, the
Company became the holding company of the Companies now
comprising the Group on 14 March 2017.

Principal Activities and Analysis of
Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group was
principally engaged in the sale of burial plots, provision of other
burial-related services and provision of cemetery maintenance
services.

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, an analysis using financial key
indicators as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section, which forms part of this Directors’ Report of
this annual report.

Results

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 60 of this annual report.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil). The Company is not
aware of any arrangements under which a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

Financial Summary

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out on page 5 of this annual report.
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The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

The Group operate one cemetery in Langfang and any significant
downturn of the regional economy or changes in local regulatory
regime or burial practices could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. The
management regularly review and adapt our services to cater to the
customs and preferences of the local residents in order to retain
existing customers and to attract prospective customers.

The death care industry in China, subject to the strict requirement of
relevant regulations imposed by the government, is a highly
regulated industry. There are strict restrictions on licenses and land
supply which pose risks and uncertainties on the Group’s business
expansion. The Group have adopted internal guidelines to ensure
that the sale of burial plots to living customers satisfy these
conditions as required by the relevant laws.

There are uncertainties associated with the expansion of our
business. The successful implementation of our expansion strategies
may be influenced by various factors such as our ability to identify
suitable business opportunities or expansion plans on our cemetery,
to obtain government and other third-party consents, permits and
licenses that are required to operate our business. The expansion of
our burial services is also dependent on customer satisfaction and
our marketing efforts. In order to maintain growth in our business,
it may be necessary for the Group to implement marketing initiatives
to create public awareness and acceptance of our services.

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a
caring environment to employees and emphasise the personal
development of its employees. The Group maintains a good
relationship with our customers and suppliers. The Group aims to
continue providing quality products and services to our customers
and establishing co-operation strategy with our suppliers.

AT RSB R #2880 E Z R K A8 E
R BRTXAREN AeBEMAEEL M
BzRBETAPRRE  HBEHETERNERRK
AeEBEAZARETHARE -

AEERBOTEE —EEE - fiZitEEH
REMBRERRIBWEESEXIEEZTMRE(L
BARSHMOER BBERRARLEERERR
BEANZE - EEEE RN MHERMOR
BoLBEEHERZEMORRELY  KMBER
BEEPRREIBERR -

TEBERBEEBNBTRGNEBER2E
BAET BRERETE BERRIHHESE
RRS BAEEZEBKERBEKER KT AR
R AKBECERAANMES  UBRAELERP
HEBWKR TS BEDREN G -

BPNEBBRFETHRARE - HMETKY
ERBERRBBORNRZEREZ  flgEEnes
HOEEEERERNGS ETAEBFREM
FZTMBREEBAFTREE  FFAUERER -
BERGOERTEHARESMEENEHENE -
REFEBER RMALAEBEHTIRIA
R E b A T PI O AR 7

AEERABRERAKEZEREEZ — KK
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The Group’s subsidiaries are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong and China. The
Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s subsidiaries
in China while the Group also has a corporate and administrative
office in Hong Kong. Our establishments and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, the British Virgin Islands, China and Hong Kong. During the
year under review, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's listed
securities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

The Group's Investment properties represented the land parcel of
Langfang City Funeral Parlour, which is leased to a third party from
January 2015 to December 2020. Details of the movements in
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
under review and as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group during
the Year under review are set out on page 63 to 64 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB4,113,000 (2017: RMB2,531,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2017: RMB563,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no single
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2017:
nil). Revenue from the Group’s five largest customers did not
account for 30% or more of the Group’s total revenue (2017: did
not account for 30% or more of the Group’s total revenue).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 80.1% (2017: 90.5%) of the total purchases for the
Year and purchases from the single largest supplier 59.1% (2017:
56.3%) of the Group's total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors,
their close associates, nor any of the Shareholders of the Company
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five
largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 62 employees
(31 December 2017: 64 employees). The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits, and the remuneration
policy will be reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance
and contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration
level. In addition, the Group also provides various training courses to
enhance the employees’ skills and capabilities in all aspects. Details
of the Group’s the retirement benefit plans are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REBFERN AEBRASELFEZEZHE
RFEEEFABEZAHEREHRNEHT B
KM 5E25 -

R2018F 128318 AR R A RFHEEREEA
A R #4,113,0007T (20174 : A E #2,531,000
JL) ©
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The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report were:

HZE2018F12A3HIEFEMRBEARERL S
ARG ZEEZRENT :

Name of Director Position

EEpE B

Zhao Ying Non-executive Director and Chairman
iR EMITERRIE

Li Xingying Executive Director

FE R WITES

Huang Guangming
= EH

Cheung Ying Kwan
o JE 35

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert
FoxHE

Choi Hon Keung, Simon

g%

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 33 to 37 of this annual report.

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years which
may be extended as each and the Company may agree, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
("AGM") in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company. Article 108 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Below are changes of directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of GEM Listing Rules from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report:

On 12 September 2017, Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon (¥%%38)
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Kenford Group
Holdings Limited (348 & B X B R 2 7)) (@ company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 0464).

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

Executive Director

WITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFRTESE

Independent Non-executive Director

BYFMTES

Independent Non-executive Director

BUIFRTESE
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E37H -

EREFHU-FZEEFHRZMTE LAXEHE
ARAHELERME  EARBEANRAAHERZA
ARBREAFRE(RRAFRGHERER
BEEL  ARBABERZAANFI08FRE 1
ERREAFRE EREFEEN=5 2 — (M
HABUFR=Z2F8 MNAREOI=02Z—MA
BEAWERET MEEZ(BERZEEFHRZMT
F)RLBEE_FWERTI R

TH A8 EMBBHEEARFERABREGEM LT
RAIE1750ANGEERENEZERE

MR2017F9R 12 ' B E R L EFATEREE TR
ERAB (B EmAR - BRMHAIE : 0464) 89
BN IEHITES ©



it
2
_H:EUH.
Off

On 1 January 2018 and 6 December 2018, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen (£
JK#) was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Capital Finance Holdings Limited (H# & BIZEKRBR 2 7)) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8329) and
China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited (1 B 22 &4 B R A7)
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 383)
respectively. Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018, he
was appointed as independent non-executive director of Dexin China
Holdings Company Limited (B BI#ZEREMRAF) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 2019) on 11 January
2019.

On 16 March 2018, Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan (& f&1#) has resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Beijing Chunlizhengda
Medical Instruments Co., Ltd. bR EZ FEEBERMKROBR A
7)) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1858).
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018, he has resigned
as an independent non-executive director of ZACD Group Ltd (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 8313) on 31
January 2019.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one vyear
without the payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which any
Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
financial year or at any time during the financial year under review.

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year under
review, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18,
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities
of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

M2018F 1818 Kk2018F1286H » T XkEFE L
FlEFEHSMITRER AR (RO RB ML
o R AER 0 8329) MEE AT A A A BB &
BHEAER QB (EBRMERB AT LW RO :
383) MBI IEHITESE - B £2018F12A318 1k
FEME%  EEELER2019F1A 1B HE£IETE
EHREZERER AR (ERMDARERZAT L™ - IRHD
RSE 2019 MBI FERITES o

M20185F3H16H » SRIEMEEF AL RMAETIE
EEESWBROERAR (EBRMRBERAT LM
f& SR - 1858) KM B FIENITESE - H=2018%F
12A31HIEFEREE - sR&EER2019F1A31H B
ABRAET A EE KRG R 8313)%5
SIERITES -

BERNEERREFASEEESE2ESF A
AEBEIMKERBFTLAEENAIE —FRK
e A EHEEE CEERBERIN 2 REAH -

B a0t B MR M WEE I REAM K
FEEXODBEMRFETMNER HELAQAFE
FYEBRERREAEEXBAR MAQR
HEMMBARXRARAMBARRAN T ZER
R RHFXEHNERLHEREETERES -

BRAREMWEEIN REEFEARN KRAH
H AL B 2 B9 &2 AT A 2 HE AR A
RAEEABEBBALRRR KA EAMEAEEE
RO EEE 2T AESNDS  THEESEHE
ERERR T NEA T FRER TN AR
BARRHEMEMEABRZRASEREE
HATEEMABEER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £



it
2
_H:mH.
Iff

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and chief executive in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required to be recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

R2018F12A31B  EERERTTHRAEHER
RABREFMABE EZE (EE R EFSH KBRS EH
(IBHRBEE]) BEXVI) 2R H - HERG &
EREFFHREEAREESFRBEBRONEXVIHEIR
SAMHMEARARAI BB R 2w AR (BIER
BEE LB EEDIB RGOS S ESRERE
EZEEmIKE) HREES KHE KA 5352
BBLHRARRFEZECMzERZ R AR
FAREGEM E T AR B Z85.46 25 6715 B A€ K QA
MRz EmRRBIAT

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests securities held shareholding
EEME EEHE FEESHEE BREHENEI L
Ms. Zhao Ying (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust who can 750,000,000(L) 75%
influence how the trustee exercises its (Note 1) (Note 3)

discretion
A £ (M aE2) SRETAZA AIREZRATER 750,000,000(L) 75%
[N R PN (B 5E1) (FF5E3)

Notes: M 3E

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position of the Shares of the Company.

(2) Ms. Zhao Ying is the chairman and non-executive Director of the
Company. She is the settlor, sole member of The Hope Trust's
protective committee and a beneficiary of The Hope Trust, which is a
discretionary trust and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is the trustee of The Hope
Trust. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. wholly owns the entire share capital of Lily
Charm Holding Limited. Lily Charm Holding Limited wholly owns the
entire issued share capital of Tai Shing International Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, Ms. Zhao Ying is deemed to be
interested in the 750,000,000 Shares directly held by Tai Shing
International Investment Company Limited.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

(1) BEXFEILIKRTEARBABRMNEBZER -

(2) HEAZTRARFTEEFIIFNITESE K AThe
Hope Trust#f E#H T ARZ @ A * JAKThe Hope
TrustiREZ B & 2 —pK 8 ° The Hope TrustA2
# 125t » MTMF (Cayman) Ltd. AThe Hope Trusts
# A °cTMF (Cayman) Ltd. &= & # AlLly Charm
Holding Limited.Z % &8 A% 7K © Lily Charm Holding
Limited 2 BEHEREERKREARATZ 2B
BITRA Bt BEXIHBANTERERR
& AR AR EEFA 2750,000,0008% 8% 15 & # A
g o
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provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to the
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, or who is,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any other
members of the Group.

HEEPEIEARER AR FEZELMZ
RIOAR B EGEM TR B 5546 E5.671%
BAHNEANB MBI ZEDIIAE -

M2018F 128318 MEEFA WAL/ B
(KRB EBRRSTERABRINRRMDKAIEE
RO HERBRIEES R EGRGIEXVIEEE2R3
DERIEXAARREE Z D IAE  HBRE
BENMBPEKRAIEIBFRELHEN ARG FTELE
Rt zERIAR  KEEXEEEEHRBRER
AIEMARATRARE NS EEMEMAEE
NAEIMBRRARS ERENETMEARNKRATEmEIOY
A B o

Approximate

Number of percentage of
securities held shareholding
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests (Note 1) (Note 5)
BERE
FEESEE BB E
BRESE BB EEME (HFEE1) (Bt &E5)
Tai Shing International Beneficial owner (Note 2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
Investment Company
Limited
FEBEERREBR LA Em A A (ME2) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
Lily Charm Holding Limited Interest in a controlled Corporation (Notes 2, 3) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
Lily Charm Holding Limited — S3E;xE k2 (552 - 3) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee (Notes 2, 3, 4) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ZFEA(FIE2 -3+ 4) 750,000,000 (L) 75%
Notes: P 3E
(1) The letter “L"” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares. (1) &‘EXFHILIRTZEE  ALTHRBROFOHIETE -
(2)  Tai Shing International Investment Company Limited directly holds  (2) TR BFEBEE AR AR EZE#EAF750,000,0000 4
750,000,000 Shares. NGIEE7

(3) Lily Charm Holding Limited holds the entire of issued share capital of
Tai Shing International Investment Company Limited, thus Lily Charm
Holding Limited is deemed to be interested in the 750,000,000 Shares.

(3) Lily Charm Holding Limited5 B ZEBEEKEFR
RNA2EE #IT/RA - BitLily Charm Holding
Limited %% 4% A 7750,000,000/% 28 2 ®1 i 15 F #E B
M o
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(4) TMF (Cayman) Ltd. is on the trusts of The Hope Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Ms. Zhao Ying, the chairman and non-
executive Director of the Company. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. directly holds
the entire issued share capital of Lily Charm Holding Limited.
Therefore, TMF is deemed to be interested in 750,000,000 Shares.

(5) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons, except disclosed below under
"Other persons’ interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company” other than the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debenture of the Company and its associated corporations which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company or any other members of the Group.

Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being Directors or chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company) had, or were deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

(4)  TMF (Cayman) Ltd. &The Hope TrustZ &t A M
The Hope Trust BN R RAI EEHRIEWMITESHEL
TR 2 2S5 ° TMF (Cayman) Lid HERE A
Lily Charm Holding LimitedZ & &6 £ 21T IR 74 ©
It TMF3# 4% 4 74750,000,000/% 748 A &] B 15 %
B o

(5) B » b & R2018%F12A831H B B 17 2
1,000,000,000/% % {3 5t & »

B EXXFAEESN - 72018F128318 BT X
[ ATRARAR KN REBRG 2 ES R
BlIFHEEN EEHTIAEBTEEMAL(ERA
BEBERESTERABRIN RARQE &KEREE
B BEROREEEPEBEIGIEEBIR
BEE M E N EXVER 2 KR35 2B 1§ XA [ A
ARIPBEZHESNAR B EESRBEKS
FE336EARERARRFE 2 B2 S aK
BN ERNHEEANEENTEMERBR
TRAARSKAEETMEMK B R ANBREKR
TLEEEMNEMBERRAEEI0%K A FfE= -

HATRART RO MAEBRGD 2 ER
-
20185128318 » BiEEMH > U TAL B
(ARRIEERHZESTHRABREZERRERIN D
ek BRI A W RIEEE BRIEE
N HR & B EXVED 52 2390 B0 #9163 A A 2 &) 3
BRI RE B EE S R E G E3361K
HRHRARRFEzETMz#Ezg AR

Number of Percentage of

Shares held shareholding

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interests (Note 1) (Note 3)
BEROGHE BRESHK

BREE BB BH EEEE (B =E1) (B £3)
Fairich Trading Limited Beneficial owner 99,000,000(L) 9.9%
REZBZHHEBRRAA EREAA 99,000,000(L) 9.9%
Ms. Xing Junying Interest in a controlled corporation 99,000,000(L) 9.9%

(Note 2)
MEHEL L RErEER (HRE2) 99,000,000(L) 9.9%

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &
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) The letter “L" denotes the entity/person’s long position in the Shares.
() Fairich Trading Limited is directly wholly owned by Ms. Xing Junying.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,000,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation other than the
Directors, the chief executive and substantial shareholders of the
Company who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture of the
Company and its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the Controlling Shareholder nor any of their respective
close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The INEDs and the rest of the Board reviewed the confirmation
provided by each of the Controlling Shareholders and confirmed that
they have reviewed the compliance with the terms of the Deed of
Non-competition dated 7 September 2017 by the Controlling
Shareholders and the enforcement of the undertakings (the
“Undertakings”) given by the Controlling Shareholders under the
Deed of Non-competition and are satisfied that all of the
Undertakings were complied with by the Controlling Shareholders for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of these related party transactions were
subject to the disclosure requirements of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Period.

FY5E -

() HEXFEILIRFZER/ATRBROHEEAR -

2 REEFERAAAMERZLIERZEHRS -
El

o b % 2018128310 B ¥ 17 2
1,000,000,0000% % 15 51 & °

@)

B XA EES - B20185F12A318 - EEHT
MBEETMEMALTHRAR(ARAEE - &517
BAEBREZERRRIN RAA T R EMEEE B R
mAERDREREREEIRIEEBRESR
5 R BB E GBI EXVERE2 X350 IE XA R AR T
BRE2ERSOKE  JRBEESR KBS K %336
BEDERARGEEZECMZERIKE -

BEHTME HE2018F128318BILFEE - AR
REERIERBREUERFSSANETHEA (E
#£ R GEM_E R RI) % A B K 5 B 3 15 5 55 5 7] A2
MEFNAMNERINZSEETRERES  TE
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, and there is no
restriction against such rights which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors are entitled to
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such Director. The
Company has purchased and maintained Directors’ liability insurance
during the year under review, which provides appropriate coverage
for the Directors.

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company is committed to support environmental sustainability.
The Company encourages environmental protection and adheres to
the principle of recycling and reducing, including encouraging
double-sided printing and copying, setting up recycling bins,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance. The Company
will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
consider implementing further eco-friendly measures in the operation
of the Group’s businesses. The Company will publish its
environmental, social and governance report on an annual basis in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

ARAREBERARKFASEHS (KRR MK
ZAERE)EDIMEARELBERZGI T
MEBMZEEN BT B ARRI AR LB
MERBRRRZBEEHMD -

ABERANRE EFHEBUATREMA
BREERRIZMBEFHFA KA -BR BK B
ERAX YA AARRRZEERGENESRE
BREAMEETE HZBRETERNEEHES
EARFEATIBRETRBRZEMER - KA
EREBEFERBESAECR IRESREHRE
ERIE

HE2018F12A3MBEFE - AEEMEET L
Al =R BnE MzEREITIBENEE-

ARBRBAIHERETHEN - AQRFHEIRR -
BRELRKKRERR  BESEIE®EHIENRED -
BB EETEBEANEBAEMABER
BARERERREERBERE - QR BTERE
HEREREN UHEERAEEEBEERER
BEZRREE AR FFRIEGEM EM R A Z 4
FBFHEERE HERERRE -

REBERARRARHDRGZENRIBESEHMAN - #
EARRE A AR A S IRGEM LM B 4R
DPR25%H AR AR HITRD 2 BHRARFTRE -



it
2
_H:EUH.
Off

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for the period
from the listing date to 31 December 2018 is set out below:

BEREEMBESBEEEAEESLETARE
2018F N2AZTA AN ERERERLR Z AT
ERdlp N

Objects

B &

Implementation plan up
to 31 December 2018

B 20185

12A31B M E it &

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2018

B ZE2018%F
12A3MBNEBRELER

Strengthening our market position
in Langfang
FE R BB T IS AL

Upgrading the main entrance area and western
internal road of cemetery
AREEREAODRNKAEMBE

Purchasing and upgrading current facilities and
machineries (such as waste incinerators and
lawn mowers) for gardening and interment
rituals

REZRZEEARNE R REYCIERE
ERET AR s

Commencing the development of the “Rose”
Garden

FnFEEIAFE]

Designing family graves
RIAREER

Maintaining and expanding the cooperation with
local funeral services providers and promoting
brand awareness with new advertisement
boards

HRELMBEEMEEREHEEENOSELT
FA T R 5 R S 15 b

Designing tree burial, flower burial services and
sea burial services; starting to provide tree
burial services

Retleize - EEERBERD
AR 7

B 46 1R 1 28

Upgrading for the greening
appearance of main entrance of
the cemetery is underway, while
that of the main entrance and
western internal road is
completed

HEFAOR 2 H(EEBIRIDE
ETARS  BEEFAQBREM
FEBE S RE & T

Having purchased the lawn mowers
and watering cart; purchased and
installed incinerators

EEBEEHER  ZkE TEKL
B E R R E R

Planned to develop and renamed
"Rose” Garden to “Pine” Garden

AEREIATE YR AAE]

Family graves and other types of
graves are designed
BREBFAREERAEMER

Having expanded cooperation with
local funeral service providers
with three new advertisement
boards in store

IR EEMBEERBHERNE
B - FIAHPFIERE SR =1E

Flower burial, tree burial and sea
burial had been designed; started
providing tree burial services
B RsriEEsE HEREZE B
R ZE R
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Objects

BE

Implementation plan up
to 31 December 2018

B £2018%F

12A31B M E &

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2018

B Z2018%F
1AMBNEBEREBER

Expanding our business scope to
provide funeral services

BAXBRE  RUBERS

Commencing the construction of family graves in

crypt-style and hill-style
PIefw=aA L NeEXRER

Polishing an artificial hill in the northern part of

cemetery
PR ERERILEEIL

Upgrading the monitoring system and the main
and northern internal roads in our cemetery

NHREEEREAG R EBRILEEE

Building a platform to conduct public memorial

ceremonies
gEARLESEATE

Promoting the brand by cooperation with

various communities

EBERMRA FHEEME

Upgrading the gardening, designing and

building the landscape connecting different

gardens in our cemetery

NHREEEERRFERZESERERANTRL

ok

Further developing our artistic burial plots areas

E— B HREMER

Designing memorial for the body donors

Rt ERRELSRE

Locating, leasing, designing and decorating
premises for the operation of funeral

services
e HA - RETRESRELE
Y 35
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78 3% B 75

Having constructed the family
graves in crypt-style and small
courtyard-style

prpnsl R ERARKR

Comprehensive design planning
and upgrading in accordance to
the change of market
environment is in progress,
implementation details need to
be further refined

BEAENRTRKETSREE
{CIEFEETT  BItBEEE—F
TER

Same as explained above
bt —

Same as explained above
A at —

Promotion in progress

EHEHERES

Completed the gardening and
building the landscape and
installations

ExRKEZEEMH=EME

Upgrade of pathways had been
completed with additional pine
trees with design

B TE A B BE T AR - 45 h03E AL AR A

A

Refining the design of memorial
BHFRRESD

Formation of Langfang Funeral
Home, have set up office point
and sent specialists to on-site

ERGmABEREERE BER LI
BHoOKEZREASR
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Objects

BE

Implementation plan up
to 31 December 2018

B £2018%F

12A31B M EET&

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2018

B £2018%F
NAMMBNEBREBER

Tapping further into the burial
market in the Jing-Jin-Ji
megalopolis & pursuing
strategic alliance and acquisition
opportunities
AABRBREEEMEERED
% FMEBEBHBERKE%ES

Commencing the business of funeral services

B 46 12 7R R IR TS

Purchasing funeral vehicles

BEEHER

Recruiting and training ten funeral services
staff

BERBEITE2EERBAR

Operating the funeral services center and
conducting marketing activities through
public media (such as local newspaper)
about funeral services

EEBREREHONNAEMBREST KARE
BETHEHERMBEERBOLHED

Expanding our funeral services business by
establishing our first funeral services store
in living community for marketing purpose

EBENERIEBMBERRGEBIELHEE
REMWBEERS X

Purchasing automobile for business operations

REBREBERSE

Liaising and cooperating with more Beijing-
based funeral services providers and
mortuaries

HE ZA R ERB HEE R AT REA# R
a1E

On-site promotion in Beijing
FEIRETEMS E

Having completed the construction
of funeral hall and improvement
of the interment ritual services

EERBEEERTK LKt
RHEBERS

Funeral vehicles had been
purchased

BEEHOCKEER

Including the manager of the
funeral service centre, six persons
were recruited and over 10
people in training.

E%Eﬂ%%ﬁﬁ*%bwﬁﬁmmﬁﬁ
ERBEABEANA - BII+HA

Preparation in progress

FHESET

Still in progress searching for an
appropriate venue

HESRAENSIT

Purchased two electric vehicles

CREMBERSE

Liaising and cooperating with four
Beijing-based funeral services
providers and mortuaries were
completed, and in continuous
expansion

B 5e A M PO SR A6 R 78 43 AR 7% 1t e 7
AR FEERKREF - WAEFE
mEH

Four shops were confirmed to
cooperate, and the Group is
negotiating with various parties

BEENREREIE ZAZEE
EREBBF
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Implementation plan up
to 31 December 2018

B £2018%F

12A31B M E &

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2018

B Z2018%F
1AMBNEBEREBER

Establishing the first Beijing-based store for
marketing purpose

RUBMEAEREEERIELH

Preliminary site visiting and investigating
several potential targets for acquisition, if
there would be any suitable ones

HEEAEWERRETRS28 AT (10
ERERE)

Conducting due diligence and entering into
framework agreement with suitable
acquisition target
HEOTRBRBELESEOWE BRI ZER
Tgfj.‘! =29

Entering into the acquisition agreement and
paying the first installment, if there would
be any suitable target

RIS W R X E
=)

IR (B A

Temporarily not set up
B KR

Having conducted site visits to
projects in various regions like
Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, etc. One
to three projects are selected for
further investigations. No
agreement entered nor any initial
payment made during the initial

stage
‘%’Ht? RiE AL F Z (A R 1A
%?E*#IJLA&IE%%EEE
1 ETRI3EE R EHETT

T—/*/F%E@I{’E P R KRR AT
Al 1% 5% R X5 & HA SR Y ) P B
15

Same as explained above.

bl —

Same as explained above.

ot —
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Since the date of Listing and up to 31 December 2018, part of the
net proceeds has been applied to use according to the Prospectus.
After the reporting period and up to the date of this report, the
Company has performed the preliminary site visiting and research for
some potential acquisition opportunities for the purpose of pursuing
strategic alliance and acquisition opportunities according to the
future plans under the Prospectus, and it is in a preliminary stage
that no agreement has been entered yet.

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the listing
date up to 31 December 2018 is set out below:

B ETHEZE2018F12A318 - FIBERIBFED
HHARBRERMAMAR - HREBHELES
RFE R ARARERE T BERBHREETT
MPEHBERLMR  EEBREBERRERAZR
RETE FMEMBERKERe REERYS
B B& e i) R BT S A Rk o

T BEHEZE2018F12A31B 8BS RIEFE
ZANESI T

Planned use of
net proceeds as
stated in the

Actual use of
net proceeds

Prospectus up to up to
31 December 31 December
2018 2018
#HZ2018F

12A31H B Z2018F
BRERERRR 12A31H
FEREFEZ FMEXEFER
BRERARE ERAZ
RMB RMB
AR AR
Strengthening our market position in & 5 BB T ) T 5 b iz 12.4 million 4.87 million
Langfang 1248 & 7T 487TEHETT
Expanding our business scope to provide 1A EE @ RHEEERS 8.0 million 0.09 million
funeral services 80BE & 0.09H & T

Tapping further into the burial market AAERREEEMBEETS -

in the Jing-Jin-Ji megalopolis & FORERBEARKERS

pursuing strategic alliance and 12.6 million 0.26 million
acquisition opportunities 1268 &L 026 & T

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax Capital”)
to be the compliance adviser. As informed by Innovax Capital,
neither Innovax Capital nor any of its directors or employees or
associates, has or may have, any interest in the share capital of the
Company or any member of the Group (including options or rights
to subscribe for such securities), which is required to be notified to
the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and Innovax Capital dated 28 March 2017.

BRIEGEM F T BIF6A. 1915 AR T B EEAIR
BMEBRAG(EIRERE]D) BAHABERM - BIEA
BB FT e A0 BR AR A R ER A B BB 70201743 A
28BFRTMAMBER BRI AIERE R EFM
EENEENBMBAL KRR AR R KANEE T
RKERAIMBEA(BIEEHAEFNBERERRE
)R A SRl se ik B IR B GEM £ T 4R BIl 556A.32
BEMGARQAR 2 EMER-
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Directors’ Report
EEE RS

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

Events occurred since the end of the financial year

There was no other significant events that might affect the Group
since the end of the financial year.

By order of the Board

Li Xingying
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Mz #

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Wan
Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 144,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

=ED
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matter

MRETERE

BrEEREZER)ARIAKRREE)
(RRSHESEMALZBRAF)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TENENNMEERRETEE

Revenue recognition for sales of burial
plots

EHHENBRARR

We identified the revenue from sales of

burial plots as a key audit matter due to

the significance of the amount and volume

of sales transactions recognised during the

year.
EERREEMEHENKARE R —TEH

%ﬁ%ﬁ%lﬁ I Th R A EE R B E X
SEBENBEREK-

Details of revenue from sales of burial
plots are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
REEHIBENREFBHRNE 0B ®W
RMIEES ©

The directors of the Company are
information.

responsible for the other
The other information comprises the information

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of burial plot included:

EERRAEMEENRAMETNREFERE

Evaluating design and implementation of internal control relevant to
the sale of burial plot.

AR MEENNBIER AR RET

Selecting burial plot sales transactions on a sample basis and:

WMEEREMHEL S &

—  reading the signed sales and purchase agreements to understand
the relevant terms in determining when the right to use burial
plots has passed to customers.

— MEESRITNESEHE ATREWETELEBEN S
REP IR

—  obtaining evidence regarding the passing of the right to use burial
plots to customers.

— CEHELEREERTEPNER -

—  reconciling the amounts of recorded transactions and related
receipts to the signed sales and purchase agreements of sales of

burial plots.
— BEARXRZINeHUEDEEMEEEERRNE BEE

TH K-

BERRAEFAHHEMESAREE HMHEEER
RENFHRNES ETERAHFM BRI LR

included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

BrEERE(ZER)ARIAKRRE(E)

(RHASHSEMKILZBRRA)

EAFEEAARREARYHREEARES
RAGEAHBEBES  FUAETHATIHRBRE
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B 75 7R 25 R 7745 o O HKEE 48 R T A Bk B K 84
SRR -

ERBEGHIBRERK ZEFRBANM A&
BB EEneE ) IREESELEAENE
HNER)  -BRIFEERE BEEEFERIEFELE
BRI 2T EEMERATHIE TR
ARBUBELERERNGE -

s

AN = BE R
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EEEMMBERERE

EENERAMESEAHVBBRRERMERSS
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA WAN TONG YUAN
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHERREMEZE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 L F[E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BILEE

2018 2017

20185 20174

NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’'000

Bt 5 AR TR ARBFT

Revenue g 5 43,385 38,617

Cost of sales and services 5 & M AR 7% Bk AN (6,954) (7,000)

Gross profit E A 36,431 31,617

Other income HAb Y A 6 10,328 4,418

Other gains/(losses) Hh ks (BiE) 7 2,461 (395)
Loss on fair value changes of BAFEFAERN

financial assets at fair value EMEEAFEZS

through profit or loss & 18 16 (2,796) —
Gain on fair value changes of REMERNFEEZS

investment properties I &= 14 250 140

Distribution and selling expenses 78 RHE R X (5.648) (4,641)

Administrative expenses THHAX (5.726) (3,247)

Initial public offering expenses BRAARBEERX — (13,997)

Profit before taxation B B0 A1 Vg A 8 35,300 13,895

Income tax expense FiE iR X 10 (7,053) (6,772)

Profit and total comprehensive income RRATHEANEGRER

for the year attributable to owners w8 A e 2 W as 4R ER

of the Company 28,247 7,123
Earnings per share B & A

Basic (RMB) EXR(ARE) 11 0.028 0.009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B O B ik R &

At 31 December 2018 72018412 A318

At 31 December

®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 5E AR% T AR T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 13 3,499 2,631
Investment properties wEWE 14 5,660 5,410
Cemetery assets EREE 15 9,081 9,092
Available-for-sale investments AfEERE 2.2 — 71,300
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFABTN
through profit or loss CHEE 16 8,845 —
27,085 88,433
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 2,001 3,537
Prepayments and other receivables T8 - 3IE R A FE U
IE 19 465 312
Amounts due from related parties JE Uit BA Bt U7 3RIE 31(a) — 2,058
Bank balances and cash RITHEHB LIRS 20 191,412 81,720
193,878 87,627
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k H b fE - 58 21 9,470 21,185
Amount due to a related party BB 5 A 31(b) — 752
Contract liabilities aNBaE 22 9,096 —
Deferred income IR & U A 2.1 — 3,220
Income tax payable J& A~ P45 85t 18,685 11,679
37,251 36,836
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 156,627 50,791
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDAEE
LIABILITIES 183,712 139,224
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BB R K

At 31 December 2018 72018412 A318

At 31 December

®W12A318
2018 2017
20184 20174
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Mo 5E AR® Tt AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I REBAE
Contract liabilities aHa’ 22 52,697 —
Deferred income P FE WA 2.1 — 48,487
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIE B FE 17 2,085 2,310
54,782 50,797
NET ASSETS EERE 128,930 88,427
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXK#E
Share capital % A% 24 66,192 66,192
Reserves ] 25 62,738 22,235
Equity attributable to owners ARAREEAELES
of the Company 128,930 88,427
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 128,930 88,427

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 144 were M HF60E E1448 A& 4 B %K © H20194F3A4
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 1SHEESERL W FERT LA TNEEE

March 2019 and signed on its behalf by: F:
Li Xingying Huang Guangming ZHWE BEEH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR FF BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Clii

3F 3£ 454

AN Iy (=]}
10 &=

S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IE F[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARER AELL
Statutory
Share Share surplus Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
EERER
B 13 B’ 17 % B #E Hib B REZEF wnE
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREBTRT ARETRE ARETRE ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 201741 /318 32,000 — 2,315 — 20,833 55,148
Profit and total FABNREE

comprehensive income hEayct|

for the year — — — — 7,123 7,123
Issue of share capital of BATARD AR

the Company (note 24) (PH 5%24) 1 — — — — 1
Issue of new shares M ARETHRMD

to the public (note 24) (P 5E24) 16,548 42,760 — — — 59,308
Transaction costs AT Y B AR B

attributable to issue of R SR

new ordinary shares — (7,485) — — — (7,485)
Capitalisation issue of B EATRG

shares (note 24) (fF5%24) 49,643 (35,275) — (5,023) (9,345) —
Transfer to statutory BEEATFRHRHEE

surplus reserve — — 1,728 — (1,728) —
Deemed distribution WRAED Ik (B 5Ea)

(note a) (32,000) — — (23,500) — (55,500)
Waiver of debt owed HeHERETRE

to Mr. Wang Jianjun S A EE (M sEb)

(note b) — — — 32,500 — 32,500
Tax charge on the waiver REETRESE

from Mr. Wang Jianjun BEeMB AL H

(note b) (Fff&Eb) — — — (8,125) — (8,125)
Waiver of debt owed MemREAEL L

to Ms. Zhao Ying EE (i sEb)

(note b) — — — 5,457 — 5,457
At 31 December 2017 20179128318 66,192 — 4,043 1,309 16,883 88,427
Fair value gain on equity EVNEEL R

securities upon initial & AE R FE 95T

application of IFRS 9 % EEtEERZ

(note 2.2) AN EKE

(fi3E2.2) — — — — 12,256 12,256
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H

(restated) (B E75) 66,192 = 4,043 1,309 29,139 100,683
Profit and total FABNREE

comprehensive income % 4R 58

for the year = = = = 28,247 28,247
Transfer to statutory surplus ¥ 2 AT B E

reserve = = 2,723 = (2,723) =
At 31 December 2018 20184 12A31H 66,192 — 6,766 1,309 54,663 128,930
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C RS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Langfang Wantongyuan
Corporation Investment Co., Ltd. (“Wantongyuan Investment”),
formerly known as Langfang Wantongyuan Corporation Management
Co., Ltd., a company established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") as a subsidiary of China Wan Tong Yuan (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”), entered into an acquisition agreement to acquire the
entire equity interest in Langfang Wantong Cemetery Co., Ltd.
(“Langfang Wantong”) from its original shareholders of Langfang
Wantong for a cash consideration of RMB55,500,000 which was
accounted for as a deemed distribution.

On 30 August 2017, Mr. Wang lJianjun, the husband of Ms. Zhao Ying
who is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company (see note
1), agreed to waive an amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to him by
Wantongyuan Investment, which was accounted for as a deemed
contribution to the Group (as defined in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements). This deemed contribution is subject to a tax
charge of approximately RMB8,125,000. On 7 September 2017, Ms.
Zhao Ying agreed to waive the amounts of RMB5,023,000 and
RMB434,000 payable to her by the Company and Wan Tong (HK)
Company Limited (“Wan Tong HK"”), a subsidiary of the Company,
respectively, which were accounted for as deemed contributions to the
Group. As the Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
Wan Tong HK is incorporated in Hong Kong, the Group is not subject
to tax on the waiver of the aforesaid payable to Ms. Zhao Ying.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

HE2017F12A31BLEFE BB ERE LR
EARAR([BRRKXE]  siBABTERED
¥EBBRAT —RRPEARLMB(THE])
RMYMAR BAREEREGER) GRA A
(IERADOMBRRD I KEHE  UWBRER
8 AR #55,500,0007T (FIVERAVES IK) M BB 5 T &
WAEBRAR (B EM]) RIERKBERE S
R & 2 Ep AR 4 -

201798 A30H + AR &) & & 15 B AR 3R (R BT &
DHEZITWLXTREEAERAEREERNER
B RER T 1% 2 5B AR ¥32,500,0007T ¢ 37 4 51 1
BRIETERAER (EE LS HIBRERME) -
AFURETEBNHIEE AL ARYS, 125,000
JL o PA20179F9A7H - HBXTREREARF R
AARZHWBARER (B BRAR ([ER(E
7)) 2 B FES T 1% M 518 A R ¥65,023,0000T & A
R #434,0007T * WA EREETERANEE - B
REARQRRRHASHEFMAY MERES R
EREMK NEBBER LR ENHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 L F[E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LFE
2018 2017
201845 20174
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
b =% AR¥ TR AREFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation B B AT & 35,300 13,895
Adjustments for: BATSEELFAE
Interest income K B WA 6 (950) (628)
Dividend income from equity I A E ® AR B
investments PN 6 (6,104) (3,600)
Depreciation of property, M- WEREE
plant and equipment e 13 677 402
Amortisation of cemetery assets EREESH 15 356 250
Gain on fair value changes of wWEMERNTE
investment properties FE) o 14 (250) (140)
Loss on fair value changes of RATEFAERD
financial assets at fair value TREEATFE
through profit or loss BEEE 16 2,796 —
Foreign exchange gain, net GNP U %5 F RE (1,976) —
Operating cash flows before movements  &iE& ¢ ZHATH
in working capital KEReRE 29,849 10,179
Increase in cemetery assets HEE E N (345) (2,581)
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,536 1,964
(Increase) decrease in prepayments T8 - 5IE [ H A FE U
and other receivables SRIE (g 00) R A (153) 751
Decrease in advance from customers BRI — (11,862)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B RHAMEMFKIE
other payables CRA) 18 n (2,574) 2,138
Increase in contract liabilities AR A EL N 945 —
Increase in deferred income i JE WA 5 N = 9,450
Cash generated from operations KEMBRS 29,258 10,039
Income tax paid B ER (4,357) (8,402)
Net cash generated from operating KEFSMEERS
activities FER 24,901 1,637
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

Year ended 31 December

BZENAMBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AR¥ TR ARETTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BER
equipment B (1,545) (595)
Repayment of loan receivables, BEEBRKRER -
staff loan and other receivables BETIENRREAM
JE W R 1B = 4,684
Interest received =R PS) 950 628
Dividend income received from AHEERENRE
available-for-sale investments N — 3,600
Dividend income received AR ATFEFABR
from financial assets at fair value 2B EE E WA
through profit or loss i B A 6,104 —
Proceeds from disposal of a financial HEZEAFEFTA
asset at fair value through profit or BEasemEEN
loss FT1S 318 76,000 —
Addition to available-for-sale BAHLERE
investments — (18,300)
Repayment from a related party 8 B 7 1B R 2,058 —
Advance to a related party BT AT — (2,057)
Net cash generated from (used in) wEEEME(FTA)
investing activities BReFE 83,567 (12,040)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Advance from related parties 8 B 07 #5R = 54,711
Repayment to related parties BRT S (752) (16,002)
Issue of share capital of the Company E: S N/NEETi L 7N = 59,308
Arising from the group reorganisation RKEEEEA = (55,500)
Payment on transaction costs BATHR D E1E 2 5
attributable to issue of new shares AN £ 3R — (7,485)
Net cash (used in) generated from BEEE (A S
financing activities He F5 (752) 35,032
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR&RIREEEY
EnE R 107,716 24,629
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#R&ERBEESH
of the year B 81,720 57,091
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ R & &7/ 2 1,976 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRABITHEBRRIR S
the year represented by bank balances HIEMRe MR eE
and cash B 191,412 81,720
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 L F[E

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands on 25 January 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 27 September 2017. The address of the
registered office of the Company is 2nd Floor, the Grand
Pavilion Commercial Centre, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box
10338, Grand Cayman KY1-1003, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Baganqu North, Economic
and Technological Development Area, Langfang, Hebei, the
PRC. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the sale of
burial plots, provision of other burial-related services and
provision of cemetery maintenance services. The Company and
its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding
company of the Company is Tai Shing International Investment
Company Limited (“Tai Shing International”), a company which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Zhao Ying (the "Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") which is also the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand ('000) unless otherwise indicated.

KRABHR2017F1A25BIREF S B S A A
ERFERESTMEK L AR EAR AR -
RNAR MR 8201799278 R B & B
aX G AR AR ([5B32F]) BGEM £
EoH il 9% = & ik A2 Floor, the Grand
Pavilion Commercial Centre, 802 West Bay
Road, P.O. Box 10338, Grand Cayman KY1-
1003, Cayman Islands « 1 H £ 2 & ¥ it 25
ARETILE B A BERMAERN\TE
o RRRMEEXEBRBZEER - MEK
BARF2WEEMIEE  REAMEZEE
ARG REREERE AARREWEA
BRI RER] -

ARAHREIERARDNERERARRZE
RERZES (REBREZES ) EMRIZH
ARIFBBARKREARAR ((FERER])
Wik 2 AR R (TR AR ARR ) #E ) -

BB RRARRDR R ENE R R
EEARBTARBDZY  Mk5ARA
Sh TBBEANEEREAONTIT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB RRW T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs™)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs for the first time in the current year:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Share-

IFRS 2 based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRS
IAS 28 Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
IAS 40

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments to IFRS
9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation which will
be mandatorily effective for the Group for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2019.

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& e IS FR R I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("|FRSS") (continued)

2.1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in IFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under IAS 18 Revenue and IAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Sales of burial plots
o Provision of other burial-related services
o Provision of cemetery maintenance services

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
IFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

7 3T T AT 45 4T B B B 7 3R 0
B2 (e i

2.1 BRI BHREERE
) W
AEBECRANFE EIRERBERETBE
& AR SE155% o BIRR B 75 & 22 R
155 UK BB & 5t R 18R
z BREAENFENREZLLIR
HE R -

155 EF A

REBEDRBPHEERBEBRYEHREE
AIZE155% B X EAZERN R
2 HIXMERBB2018F1718
‘E’JOJ‘E/\%}KFEEHEIHJ%QDE{HT%E

ARNBMMRE BN ER AL EED
ttféfﬂ AN RBEBRE M B RE

ERFISH AEBECEEEHR

2018F1A1H MR 2 & #8811
FEAZAER - Bt AREEERTY
RIEBRR S 2B F185% Mz - B
S ERENRELS AR BERE

B HETLERANSTABT L
-

AEEEREIEZREUATRRZEP
BRI

. HEZM

. hE L H i B2 30 ME BE AR 7

. REZEGERS
ERASEREBERYBEHRSENE

SREBNBOEERETRENE
o Bl 5 B RES K BY FE3HEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& OF B 1 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("| FRSS") (continued)

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2.1

(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS

15

There's no impact of transition to IFRS 15 on retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. The following adjustments
were made to the amounts
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January

ﬁﬁZE’]

recognised in the

AR 1 75 ¥R 5 E R E
) W am (4
E?ﬂﬂgﬁﬁlﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%%,ﬁﬂ%’w%?i

BEABBMEHRSER
2018 F1AHTBRBABMITEFZE - A
T%?fzmsimﬁwwﬁﬂﬁﬂxﬁﬁ
MNERSBEHOAE K&

7 3T T AT 45 4T B B B 7 3R 0
B> (e i

158 BFE A

=R
E

2 it
155 &

2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes ZHHSEENLEZS] o
have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at IFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018*
20185
1A1BRE
£RTR20175F ERBHRE
128318 2% E R E155
MR E EfNE ERNEEE*
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ik ARBT ARBT ARBT
Current Liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNKE a 21,185 (9,141) 12,044
Deferred income BT A b 3,220 (3,220) —
Contract liabilities BHERE ab — 12,361 12,361
Non-current Liabilities k¥RBEE
Deferred income AN b 48,487 (48,487) —
Contract liabilities alaE b — 48,487 48,487
* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments * %5 B B R R B R R B 78 3R
from the application of IFRS 9. LR FOME R ITIHEE o
Notes: B 5
(a) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of (a) HR2018F1A18 AT A B S &
RMB9,141,000 previously included in trade and other HEMENZENZERRARK
payables were reclassified to current portion of contract 9,141,000t EF N EBEANAEEN
liabilities. ﬁEJJE‘B’ﬁ o
(b) As at 1 January 2018, the entire deferred income of (b) HR2018FE1 818 BEET W A A

RMB51,707,000 (including current and non-current
portions of RMB3,220,000 and RMB48,487,000,
respectively) related to the consideration received in
advance from the provision of cemetery maintenance
services. This balance was reclassified to contract
liabilities upon application of IFRS 15.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

R #51,707,0007C (B 45 7 &) & FE 7
& “/‘EJ%/\E% 220,0007T &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& e IS FR R I 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("|FRSS") (continued)

2.1

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS
15 (continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
IFRS 15 on the Group’'s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 and its
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended for each of the line items affected. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included. There is no impact of applying IFRS 15 on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the current year.

\ \
0 At

TREBTEBHBESE
2R (ms

E%W%ﬁ AR 2B
%)W 2=
Emﬁm@@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%w%ﬁ
FR A 52 22t (48)

N R FE B RS B S R 22 R EB15
SRR £ EN2018F12A318 2 & #
HHRRAREREEEZBILZAHE
CRERSIVEMHDBEMNTE-
AREHTENMOEILERY -
J@%%ﬂﬁﬁ%¥&m—'—/ﬁ\”%15ﬂﬁﬁT$E
EAMBEZREME2ARSERTESY
P

155 EF A

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEMMBIRAENZE
position
Amounts
without
application
As reported  Adjustments of IFRS 15
I & ER
MR B 3% R
% B 1555
EHMNEHE AE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Current Liabilities hREBAaE
Trade and other payables B REMEMNKE 9,470 5,392 14,862
Deferred income T WA — 3,704 3,704
Contract liabilities arasE 9,096 (9,096) —
Non-current Liabilities *kRBEE
Deferred income T WA — 52,697 52,697
Contract liabilities arnasE 52,697 (52,697) —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& e IS FR R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FAIRKBETBEBRGEREE
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL ABlzERA (BRI EREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al ]) )

("|FRSS") (continued)
2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 2.1 B ﬁﬂ’%i& ERFEISHEETEEA
(continued) 2 ER ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows HEMHBEERERNEE
Amounts
without
application
As reported  Adjustments of IFRS 15
I % & PR
ERHERE
B $15%
EHNEHE B e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TRT ARETR

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH

Decrease in advance from customers B EEFUR D — (3,749) (3,749)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEEM 945 (945) —
Increase in deferred income B A AN — 4,694 4,694
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("|FRSS") (continued)

2.2

I[FRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9
Financial instruments, Amendments to IFRS 9
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation and
the related consequential amendments to other IFRSs.
IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets, and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9. i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained earnings and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.

97 4T J2 4 165 3T 1 1S 1 06 3R 25
B> (o 1

22 BEBEMBREEMNESRS M T
AR EREET
RARFEE  NEEC E BB R M E®R
SRANESREHTA  BRMBRE
ERIHEE (BFTA) R B HIEA AN 7
TEHFIE e B S b B PR B 75 3R 5
AR AR BRM B HREERSE
IS ABERNWEREERERAE
DENFE QEREERNREER
BUEHREEERD  RQ)—&KHHH
SEEEDENFHRE °

RNEE B IRIR BRI 75 k& 2 R 5B 95%
BT80S A B BR B IS 3R &5 2 8
Fo% - WEAXEAHAH2018F1A1H
MARIIERANTAEANGHERASE
LitERTE (REEHEEBIEBETY
BE)  BAREMR2018F1ATHE LI
RN IEERAZIHRT 2017412
A31H EEEE2018F1A1H kM A
ZENEZEERBVREEN R EDH
HBoMR TESINHLRER -

AALLEBERDIREBRB S ERSE
e TAE BRAMKTEHEE E
hEFLEERER ST EEA L -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("| FRSS") (continued)

2.2
amendments (continued)

I[FRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

2. T RS ET EI M B A R0k
B> (e i
2.2

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets under IFRS 9 and IAS 39
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

B B 75 R 5 2E BI S5 95% & @ T

BN BB (8

B R E BB B S R AR BN BB o5 s Ak
5 2R

TRFPEREXERARE2018F1 A1
B 1R 4% B B B 75 3R 25 2E B 595k K BB

S EAFEIRMEMEE D B G

2
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
Available- ("FVTPL") Deferred
for-sale required by tax Retained
investments IFRS 9 liabilities earnings
HE %A
FORBE
BATHE
sTABEH
(&2 ¥E
AHEE  FABZED EEHRIE
BE MeMEE afE REEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BTRT ARETIT AR®FTR
Closing balance M2017512A31H
at 31 December 2017 W R 45 8
— IAS 39 — EREER
%3958 71,300 — 2,310 16,883
Reclassification EFSE
From available-for-sale BRI EHERE
investments (note b) (B #Eb) (71,300) 71,300 — —
Remeasurement EfstE
From cost less impairment to B A SRR B
fair value (note b) ERFME
(Pfd 7Fb) — 16,341 4,085 12,256
Opening balance M2018F1H1A M
at 1 January 2018 ERIEC S = 87,641 6,395 29,139
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("|FRSS") (continued)

2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The financial assets previously classified as loans and
receivables are all grouped under amortised cost.

At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, the Group’s
equity investments of RMB71,300,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale investments to financial assets at
FVTPL. The fair value gains of RMB16,341,000 relating to
those equity investments previously carried at cost less
impairment were adjusted to financial assets at FVTPL
and retained earnings as at 1 January 2018. In addition,
the corresponding deferred tax liabilities of
RMB4,085,000 was recognised with the deferred tax
expense charged to retained earnings as at 1 January
2018.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprising bank balances, amounts due from
related parties and other receivables are measured on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis and there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
No additional credit loss allowance has been recognised
against retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

BRI R B 75 5 E RIS
H R HEAER @
BRE R BRI RS ERIFREK
VEER A (E)

RO & R T

(@) WASBEAERREKS
BEDGEABHEKA -

X IE H) & B

(b)  RERERDRRY KRS ERFEGR
EH ASEONRABEARE
71,300,000t B AJ i EREEH D
BERAFEFABEZNESRE
EE o BRI BT IR BX AN JRURL B B BR 2 AR
AEEHBENRAFHERZEARKE
16,341,000t AR EZ A FEF AR
HFH LR EE K2018F1A18 8%
BAF -ty HEETEHEEEA
R #4,085,0007T 20181818 i
RREFERZARE AR -

#ﬁ%%;ﬂmﬁimﬁmﬁﬁmééﬁg
BIERITE S EBWREB T RBEBRE
fth FEUR IR BB R IR 1218 B e H (s
BEEE(NREABEHEEEE)ESE
AE-MEERR AT ERURIL
4K IR G 0 - I FL2018F 1 A1H R
BRNEREINGEBIBEE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("| FRSS") (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of

all new standards and amendments

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
shows the adjustments recognised for each of the line

N
e
2y

sm
H

\
=
=
L
~

2.3

=P
A
—~
—| W

b

[3ag
>m:|ﬁ
wWg

FER P B #T AT 2B K

Y1a oF SR SR B

% 8

R &

i Do
a7

NAZET A % 5
S/ g0
=

MRAAREE S BRNES
B HMYE G EARREK - Ti’%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ'\
REEXZENAS

B - RAXEHTENA

H B RN H
DB A ES

items affected. Line items that were not affected by the Bl o
changes have not been included.
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(audited) IFRS 15 IFRS 9 (restated)
2017 B B B 7 B B B 7 2018%
12A31H BEER BEER 1A1H
(&%) 1558 L L (BE5H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRE ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 71,300 — (71,300) —
Financial assets at FVTPL ERFEFABE
MEeEmEE — — 87,641 87,641
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables B REMER
HIE 21,185 (9,141) — 12,044
Contract liabilities aNaR — 12,361 — 12,361
Deferred income R A 3,220 (3,220) — —
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEEARDAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 139,224 — 16,341 155,565
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREBEE
Contract liabilities ANAR — 48,487 — 48,487
Deferred income R A 48,487 (48,487) — —
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEERE 2,310 — 4,085 6,395
NET ASSETS BEFE 88,427 — 12,256 100,683
RESERVES R
Reserves e 22,235 — 12,256 34,491
Equity attributable to owners YNGIE 2PN 2
of the Company i g 88,427 — 12,256 100,683
Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating Wik : AERME T EZZ2HRE E20185F12

activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2018, movements in working capital have
been computed based on opening statement of financial

position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("|FRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

IFRIC 23

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 1 and
IAS 8

Amendments to
IAS 19

Amendments to
IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Definition of a Business*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that
the application of all the new and amendments to IFRSs above
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

7 3T T AT 45 4T B B B 7 3R 0
B2 (e i

B 2R MR 18 i R A R T B SR AR IS ET R
R B 7% ¥R & 2E Bl

AEBERGRATRMBATERME M RER
BT R ARERT BN B IS RS A

BRMEHRESEN HE

F165%

BB REER  RBREHLS
F175%

BB ERERE MEHEEZTHE
Z B g H23% E M

BRI B RE R EBHTER
EXLACCHIR:S)

BB REER KREEHRABE QA
F105% & B BB REELE AL
AR ZE285% %X&)\éﬁz
CHES)

B g %‘EE‘J%W@ BERHE &S
KB &t £ R
%85)*?({ .:T$)

B PR & 52 Al FFEMEIE - MRk
%195)*‘(1/ HEN) B E

B PR & 52 Al REE R REE
£28% (15T AN) TtEZERHEANZ

BRI maE R BEERMBHREERF
(UBETA) E R (2015F &

2017 A ER)
1 R2019F 1 AVAE Sk Z 8 Fta 2 F/E BB &
o4
2 RETEHR 2 AHB2EEHRER

3 MR2021F1A1BSk 2 & FIR 2 FEER

4 A UCRE B H1A20204E1 A1H 3 2 B R 14
ZEEFEHENRRZEABRELS
B B EE URBE AR

5 MR2020F 1 A1B Sk 2 B BB FEAAMAE
w

ARBER(TER])AMEMME LT

RGETERMBHRELENNATRRKES
HUBBRETEEEATE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £



& OF B 1 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
IAS 36 /Impairment of assets.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (sales of burial plots and provision of cemetery
maintenance services), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2) (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met each of the Group’s activities as
described below.
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Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(continued)

The Group enters into contracts with its customers for the
provision of burial services, which include the sale of burial
plots and cemetery maintenance services.

Revenue from the sale of burial plots is recognised when the
right to use burial plots has passed, at which time all the
following conditions have been satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of the burial plots;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the burial plots

sold;
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of cemetery maintenance services
is deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining service period. The contract price for the cemetery
maintenance services represents the fair value of such services.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably).
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when the employee rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation (as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income) because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax_is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

BB (80
HREAAFEEEAFENREMEZRT
WA FRIFFARWER  TRZEMENER
HERKTEBHETZRE -BREME
ATHEREXFB SRR MEERE
VIR E AR KER D &E N & (M 3F 58
HENMEBEAFER  ARERKRE
o

B A EBIT RN A 5 B BT 1R & A 82 A0 AR
MIEBERE BHER -HEEEARNR 2
FIEHAR MASERZFBEELELER
BB EERAGE  AEERBREERA
(ERIER R

VSR E RN B PR WAL ER
H2HREEERN EaNERNEBEA
B AEZBRT BN REEH BN D Rl
REMEZERGEXEENERAER -

WME - WENEE

ME BEMRE(ERFELEIHRER
an 2k AR 75 S AR TT IR A 3 MO8 F°) 12 A A OBl L
BRAFTERRFREBR(WMAE)RA G
TR0 R 5 Bk -

ME- BEMREBEBRENTEREGRAE
PR B A0 B R BR (B (B 1R A B ARORFERR DA K
AR o AETAIERFEHY  MBnEERTE
TEREREMRRE - MG RSN
FERBAMREZIEEAR-

ME - BEMRBEEXREERARFER
RZEETGELSAREEN R K I
R-BEXBEVE BELRBELENT
R AR B RRIEERFFRERZEERT
BZENERET UNBHEANER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £



& OF B 1 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Cemetery assets

Cemetery assets consist of prepaid lease payments, cost of
initial land development, and cost of landscaping for the
general public areas of the cemetery and are carried at the
lower of costs less accumulated amortisation and net realisable
value prior to the commencement of development of the
cemetery. Amortisation for cemetery assets is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
cemetery assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Upon commencement of development of the cemetery with
the intention of sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group, the related carrying amounts of cemetery assets are
transferred to inventories.
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Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash- generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

BEERE

RBEHR AEEEHNAVEENERE
B NEETEREMNPRERZEEERER
MEER - WEEAZEHR  AEHtE
ENTROEE  LEEHEESRE(mME) N
RE -

BEEM AR E 2 RIRE R E &[G
TA AT EREEN AR EE  BIARE
BehitZEEMBNREESEUMATK
C&fE - EARESER —BE8 D iEEN
BAT rABEENGE EE@EMNRSESL
B BRESIREZARESRER —EHNS
REENRNRSELEMAR -

YO REAFERIEXNAREREE
MEREE - ETEEREER  SEARKRK
AR EREFRKBESRERREEZER
B ZUARERRHSEREEERBEE
LZBE(MREELEM) FERROTG
(EARFEMBARKRRSRE)

WEE (HRSELEM) WA RES B
BRERHE BE(GRSELFEM) NK
EEAREEAT RO SR - BEBBINER
BRPER -

WRERBEEREERR EE(XREEL
BOMEREEEELETNMEFTRE S
BOEKLARHNEEEINSEBRZEE (X
ReELBEMEREFENL EERRE
1R A B AR E B - B 3 /0 R (E B 1R AN B
RSB ALER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £



& OF B 1 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Inventories

Inventories include cemetery assets developed and ready for
sale, cemetery assets under development, and tombstones and
urns. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “loss on fair value changes of financial assets at
FVTPL” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
other receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

For the Group’s instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effect.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Rt T A
EREEH)

@A E R E (IRIE BT 269 38 )% JE BT B

B ERER 2 &) (E)

(v BHEEBEMNGEEER(E)
—RmE FHREEBEZASER
BAEAORBKNMAANRASRERN
SEEHURBRNRSTEZHNEZR
it YIRS AR EENERF
TRRIA o

MBWAZESBEENAR@ER
 wemEEFERE  MMEK
ABREREENBHERATH -

AEEBBREMASRTANKRE
ERERERNEZRERZLE
18 M E A EUCRIR RSN - UL REIE R
TEBERBERERERAE -

EREEN D EREKTE(R2018F141
F & /5 B B~ 31 75 71 & 2B R £ 935 .2 BT

AEENESRMEED B RERLIEWFIEIA
RAHHESREE - ZO BEHRRERME
ENHERER YRS EIFEEED
B-ALFREENEREENEERNA
HEFUBRREILER - EFEERAR
ERETIGEAMHFTNERAINEED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 £



& OF B 1 AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

(i)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that
are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for the investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonable assessed and used in estimating fair value are
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as loans and
receivables, that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018) (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amount due to a related party are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 IEF[E

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Investment properties

Investment properties were stated at fair values based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain assumptions and
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors have exercised their judgment and are
satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2018 was RMB5,660,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB5,410,000). More details are set out in note 14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Certain of the Group’s financial assets relating to unquoted
equity instruments amounting to RMB8,845,000 as at 31
December 2018 were measured at fair values with fair values
being determined based on unobserved inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these

A A REREZENEERE @
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factors could affect the reported fair values of these financial 27c e
instruments. More details are set out in note 27c.

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5. W k&&E DI

A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A, BHE2018F12H31MHIEFE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BREAEHNEDE
customers

For the year ended
31 December 2018
B Z2018F12HA31B L FE

Sales of

burial plots
and provision Provision of
of other cemetery
burial-related maintenance
services services

HEEHWER
R HE b E i REEE
6 #8 R 7% R
RMB’000 RMB’000
Segments 2 & AR¥T T AR¥ET R

Types of goods and service BmMREES
Sales of burial plots HEE M 37,387 =
Provision of other burial-related RHAMEMAR

services R %5 2,619 —
Provision of cemetery maintenance 324t & & 4 E R

services — 3,379
Total BEt 40,006 3,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB RRW T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5. WBREKEE DI

(continued)
A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) A, EZE2018F12A31H ILFE (&)
()  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with iy BP&EHOK=EEE)

customers (continued)

For the year ended
31 December 2018
B Z2018F12A31B L EE

Sales of

burial plots
and provision Provision of
of other cemetery

burial-related maintenance
services services
HEEHMK
REEHEME RUEEER
6 B8 AR % # 5% IR %
RMB’000 RMB’000
Segments 7 & AR®T T AR¥T T

Timing of revenue recognition BRKENER

A point in time TR —BHE 37,387 —
Over time & B ] 07 70 2,619 3,379
Total 5t 40,006 3,379
All of the Group'’s revenue is generated in the PRC REBMRMERZHRERTEH -
based on where goods are sold or services are I E B S R SR R AR o
rendered, and substantially all of the Group's KEFEBBRAESDOUH#AINEERE
identifiable assets and liabilities are located in the BHEMAPE -
PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5. Wak&&E 5

(continued)
A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) A, EZE2018F12A31H L FE (&)
()  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with iy EBFP&EHOK=EDEE)
customers (continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue TXHINEFEHREZEDHE
from contracts with customers with the amounts *41&5@2@%5\!3’]”?35

disclosed in the segment information.

For the year ended
31 December 2018

B Z2018F12A31B LFE
Sales of
burial plots
and provision Provision of
of other cemetery
burial-related maintenance
services services
HEEHMRK
R H M E i REEE
6 B8 BR 7% # % IR %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AR T
Revenue disclosed in segment DEERBFEEHR S
information
External customers SNERE P 40,006 3,379
Revenue from contracts with EP & E=E
customers 40,006 3,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of burial plots with maintenance services
(multiple performance obligations)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of burial plots, the relevant burial plots specified
in the contracts have no alternative use to the
Group. Taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms, the legal environment and relevant
legal precedent, the Group concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of the burial plots to
customers. Revenue from sales of burial plots is
therefore recognised at a point in time when the
burial plot is transferred to customers, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of the
burial plots and the Group has present right to
payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

The cemetery maintenance service is considered to
be a distinct service. Transaction price is allocated
between sales of burial plots and the maintenance
services on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Revenue relating to the maintenance services
is recognised over time. The transaction price
allocated to these services is recognised as a
contract liability at the time of the initial sales
transaction and is released on a straight line basis
over the period of service.

The Group applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a
contract if these costs would otherwise have been
fully amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Provision of other burial-related services

Other burial-related services represented revenues
from miscellaneous services such as the
organisation and conducting of burial rituals, the
design and landscaping of the burial sites and
additional engraving fees. Revenue relating to
these burial-related services is recognised over
time.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

A.

HZE2018F12A31B It FE (&)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5. WEREE D@

(continued)
A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) A. B ZE2018F12A31H IEFE (8)
(i)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PEEBPENFBRENRTN
performance obligation for contracts with 5B
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining 72018 12A318 » 5 B & F
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially MEXNEECRETHE D ETT)
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the B2 5 B R R 0 TE R
expected timing of recognising revenue are as RN
follows:
Provision of
cemetery
Sales of maintenance
burial plots services
REHEEER
HEEi &R
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETF T ARBFIT
Within one year/on demand R—FRNIREK 4,037 5,059
More than one year but not more BB —FETIBB
than two years R F — 3,801
More than two years i 38 £ — 48,896
4,037 57,756
B. For the year ended 31 December 2017 B. ®#ZE2017F12A31BLLFE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as RAEEBRAFENRRITET -
follows:
Year ended
31 December
2017
B Z20174
12A31B LFE
RMB’000
ARBF T
Sales of burial plots SHEE M 32,170
Provision of other burial-related services T2 H i 2 310 48 B8 AR 75 3,396
Provision of cemetery maintenance services REEEEERS 3,051
38,617
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5. WaER&EED =

(continued)

C. Operating segments C. ®&HE
The Group determines its operating segments based on AEBBEBEEZELEARE (REBS
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision BB KETEF LT AREBY &R
makers, including Ms. Li Xingying, the general manager BlRKIREERLEETRPELE (B
of Langfang Wantong, Mr. Huang Guangming and Mr. ?ﬁ%(IE”“%&%%J))Fﬁ%VﬁH AE
Yu Minghua, the deputy general managers of Langfang PEBERREOBREEELENE - 2
Wantong (collectively, the “CODM"), that are used to WMTEELERARENERERLEE
make strategic decisions. Information reported to the B RENERRRBEIED -
CODM is based on the products and services delivered
or provided by the Group.
The Group’s operating and reporting segments are (i) AEBMLE R WD FZL R B
sales of burial plots and provision of other burial-related iﬁ%ﬁiﬂl&kﬁvﬁﬂ%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂ&
services; and (i) provision of cemetery maintenance RNRHERFERD -
services in the PRC.
Segment revenue and results D E M R FEA
Year ended 31 December 2018 B RE2018F12A31H 1F F/Z

Sales of

burial plots
and provision Provision of
of other cemetery
burial-related maintenance

services services
HEEHMR
R HE fh E i REHER
6 B8 PR 75 # 8 IR 7 et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR®TRT AR®TxR

Segment revenue pol & 40,006 3,379 43,385
Segment results DEBELE 33,421 3,010 36,431
Other income Hab g A 10,328
Other gains H b Y = 2,461
Loss on fair value changes of BAFEAEBREN

financial assets at FVTPL THEEATE

2EEE (2,796)

Gain on fair value changes of KEMEANTE

investment properties B E 250
Distribution and selling expenses 7§ & $8 & i % (5,648)
Administrative expenses THRAX (5.726)
Profit before taxation R A% Al g A 35,300
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

C.

<

o

& A

/\4%/52/

Operating segments (continued) =)
Segment revenue and results (continued) 7B R A ()
Year ended 31 December 2017 A 22017F12H31H 1F F/&
Sales of
burial plots
and provision Provision of
of other cemetery
burial-related maintenance
services services Total
HEEH &
REHMEM REHER
6 8 AR 75 # & IR 75 HEt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARBTFIT ARETR
Segment revenue Pal= IR E 35,566 3,051 38,617
Segment results D EPE A 29,187 2,430 31,617
Other income H At e A 4,418
Other losses Hib & 1B (395)
Gain on fair value changes of KEMEANTE
investment properties B E 140
Distribution and selling expenses % § & $8 & f % (4,641)
Administrative expenses THRHAX (3,247)
Initial public offering expenses BARHBERX (13,997)
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 5 A 13,895
The accounting policies of the operating segments are BED SRR B E3MEAE

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment results represent the gross profit
attributable to each segment without allocation of other
income, other gains or losses, loss on fair value changes
of financial assets at FVTPL, gain on fair value changes
of investment properties, distribution and selling
expenses, administrative expenses and initial public
offering expenses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. There were no inter-segment
revenue during the current and prior years. No analysis
of segment assets and liabilities is presented as it is not
regularly reviewed by the CODM.

EEERRER - D EEEEED

MELENEMN UESEEMBEA -
Hip s sk i 18 - T“zFqu)\TE i HY
TREER IFTE“@UEEHTE BREME
NP EEBWE DEREEM

TRAXRERAREER MR
MASEBTIELERAREZRUIEE
BOREEBEFENFERE - KF
F&ﬂ&iFIE“%ﬁWA°m%
AEFBTEREARARELETHE
Bl - MY BEJNEMOMEERAR
B D AT e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS 5.

(continued)
C. Operating segments (continued)
Information about major customers

No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for 2018 (2017: nil).

R AR E o 88 o)

C. RKEnab

FEEFPER
M2018F  HIBE - EAKEBE K
= H10% sk BA £ (20174F « £&) ©

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hftg A
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Interest income on bank deposits RITERAE WA 950 628
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL 122 F{EE ABz 2
SREENRE
A 6,104 —
Dividend income from available-for-sale ARHERENRE
investments A — 3,600
Government grants BT+ B 3,084 —
Rental income el A 190 190
10,328 4,418
7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) 7. Hfttgzs ~(B518)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETF T

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net SNE U RS (E51E)
FEE

2,461 (395)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

8.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

8. BR¥ AR

R B0 e M N BR A T &3]

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B & 930 870
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #¥1% - B &= M & &
e 677 402
Amortisation of cemetery assets EREEHE(BE
(included in cost of sales and services) $HE KRB AA) 356 250
Total depreciation and amortisation TEREHERE 1,033 652
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRAERITNFEEKRAN 5,462 5,382
Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration BEIRA BiEEE
(note 9): B & (B 529) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe ITENRHEM
2 A 4,520 3,259
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR R AE B 5T 8 5% 297 204
Total staff costs w8 TR 4,817 3,463

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %8 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB RRW T

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

9.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. EE= -HRRITRAEBRESR
EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS 3 i
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) BEEZK&ESTHEAE
Ms. Li Xingying and Mr. Huang Guangming were FHBLZTREEREENR2017F3A
appointed as Directors on 21 March 2017. Ms. Zhao QIREZEARESE MEELLR
Ying was appointed as a Director on 25 January 2017 20171 1ASB EZEREF AR
and was designated as a non-executive director on 21 2017F3A21BBIEERIENITES -
March 2017. Ms. Li Xingying is also the general TEBLTITABY SR BEE -
manager of Langfang Wantong. Mr. Choi Hon Keung, ORGSR E  EokEE LT RRERE
Simon, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert and Mr. Cheung ER2017F9R7E EZE AR ILIEH
Ying Kwan were appointed as independent non- TEE-
executive directors on 7 September 2017.
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors RAFERE—FE RAEFBEET
(including emoluments for their services as employee/ BRI BENIENESOHN(E
directors of subsidiaries prior to becoming the Directors) ERABEEZAMEAWNBERARIERE
and chief executive by entities comprising the Group EERHERBOETH) MT
during the current and last year are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFT
Directors’ and chief executive’s EERESTHAE
emoluments & B
— Salaries and other benefits — e REAhEF 930 476
— Discretionary performance — related — BBEES RS
bonus* — MEBEL 408 250
— Retirement benefit scheme — R RAE A E A
contributions HE 47 13
Total emoluments A ER 1,385 739
* Directors and chief executive are entitled to bonus * EERGERITBABAEGFGES

payments which are determined based on the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors and chief executive as
well as the operating results of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 9. EE-RBRETHAERES
EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) W =)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) BEENESITHABHFNME

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12H31H 1F F/ZF

Salaries Retirement  Discretionary
and other benefit scheme performance
benefits  contributions - related bonus Total
FER BHREFN BEgExRS
Hit B = I & — HBEEAL @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®T R AR%®TR AR%T=x
Executive directors: UTES:
Ms. Li Xingying FRALT 121 8 72 201
Mr. Huang Guangming BEEALE 286 39 168 493
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Ms. Zhao Ying (note 3) AL (i 53) = — — —
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon mE kg 84 — — 84
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert ok L 84 — — 84
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan R FE 3 5 & 84 = = 84
Chief executive: BESTBAE:
Mr. Yu Minghua RAELE 271 = 168 439
Total @t 930 47 408 1,385
Year ended 31 December 2017 Et22017F12H31H 1F F/&E
Salaries Retirement Discretionary
and other  benefit scheme performance
benefits contributions - related bonus Total
ek RAWEN BEENES
H 8 M BELE — BT st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBEFTT ARETRT
Executive directors: BTES:
Ms. Li Xingying FRALT 71 7 40 118
Mr. Huang Guangming (note 2) HEHEE (i) 68 6 42 116
Non-executive director: kHTES:
Ms. Zhao Ying (note 3) AL (fE3) — — - -
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Choi Hon Keung, Simon EEe kg 23 — — 23
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen, Albert ToxEEL 23 — — 23
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan oK FE 3 T 23 — = 23
Chief executive: BETHAR:
Mr. Yu Minghua RAELE 268 — 168 436
Total M5t 476 13 250, /39
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. ¥
EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) #r

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
(continued)

Notes:

(W) The directors’ and chief executive's emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

(2) During the period from 1 January 2017 to 30 September
2017, Mr. Huang Guangming received his emoluments
from a fellow subsidiary of the Group, part of which was
in respect of his services as an employee to Langfang
Wantong and a director of the Company. No
apportionment has been made as the Directors consider
that it is impracticable to apportion these amounts
between his services to Langfang Wantong and director
of the Company and his services to the fellow subsidiary
of the Group.

Mr. Huang Guangming received his emoluments from a
subsidiary of the Group since 1 October 2017.

(3) During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, Ms.
Zhao Ying received her emoluments from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, part of which was in respect of
her services as an employee to Langfang Wantong and a
director of the Company. No apportionment has been
made as the Directors consider that it is impracticable to
apportion these amounts between her services to
Langfang Wantong and director of the Company and her
services to the fellow subsidiary of the Group.

(b) Employee’'s emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included two directors whose payment was below
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$")1,000,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: two directors whose payment
was below HK$1,000,000). Details of whose emoluments
are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2017: three) highest paid employees who are not
the Directors are as follows:

£ RETHARRER

EERESTBRABFM @

(1) LtREERESTBRAEFHILE
NEBRAEEEBHORE

(2) 201751 A1H £20179A30F i
- EE A AR AR E R R
BRABMNHE  EhaloBEX
NRBHERMEARREEER -
MNEERRREN B ER LA
RAIEFRAEER R E QAR
BH B R L Pl 0 B ESR RIR AN E
B O AR D RC -

EEALEAEBE2017F10A18 B UE
AEBMMBERRFASBE -

(3)  H 20174 K2018F12A31H It F
AT RAAEER RN B
AR E  EREoHEERh
RENEREARNREEER - A
REERABERERBHEREAR
RIZESERASER RN E AR RS
WERLA2EEARBEBRIE
B iR R DD o

& 8 %r B

AFEERAEBRAEESTMALERE
HZE2018F 128318 I F E HBE R
1,000,000 st ([B T WM B = =
017F M % & T H M K »
1,000,000 7T) - EHFMFFZH R L
Xo-BRT=-Z%FEERFHFHESE
(2017F : ZB) M H B EF 0T -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T
Salaries and other allowances e REMER 750 580
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R AKAE I FT 8] 3R 21 14
771 594
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #{ Z2018F12A318 It F[Z

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 9. EX= -HRRTHRAEBRESR
EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) E2q0 N
(b) Employee’s emoluments (continued) (b) EE M@
The number of the highest paid employees who are not IEEHERTHEENTFMANFUT
the Directors whose emoluments fell within the #E
following band is as follows:
Number of employees
EE#A
2018 2017
20185 20174
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the RAEE XEEBTEAESE &a
Group to the Directors, chief executive or the non- THRAESFEEESFMNEE SN
director highest paid employees as an inducement to join B DA W 5| B hn AN B2 B s PE R N A
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss e kB EQNTE &) et
of office (2017: nil). In addition, none of the Directors, I EE HETBRABRIEEER
chief executive nor the non-director highest paid = 3 E B 7 AN 5 FZ A REE A () B
employees waived any emoluments during the vyear © (20174 : &) -
(2017: nil).
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBIAX
Year ended 31 December
BZEN2A3MBLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBEF T
Current enterprise income tax BNER S P15 R 11,363 4,537
Deferred tax (note 17) B IA (M 5E17) (4,310) 2,235
7,053 6,772
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRSE®H B X
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEBBRIHERBATNEMNERNOT
before taxation as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T Tt AREFIT
Profit before taxation B 5 B g A 35,300 13,895
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25% 2 A E25%
FTENTIA 8,825 3,474
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax IR Aok R
purpose e 416 1,991
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose 878 i2 7 W A B 4 7%
wa (2,221) (900)
Withholding tax on dividend declared by a PRC " BB B 2~ A 5 /& A%
subsidiary (note b) BRTEMFR (HiEb) = 2,200
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERTEHEER
M E 33 7
Tax charge MIEH X 7,053 6,772
Notes: i
(a) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT (a) REBEPBECEMREBFRETECEMRBRED

Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years. No Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
had been made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group’s subsidiaries had no assessable profit subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018  # £2018F 12 A318 It FE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

11.

12.

Notes: (continued)

(b) In accordance with the PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan [2008] 112)
effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC withholding income tax
at the rate of 10% is applicable to dividends to “non-resident”
investors who do not have an establishment or place of
business in the PRC. The amount represents the withholding
income tax provided on dividend declared but not yet paid by a
PRC subsidiary amounting to RMB22,000,000.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

10.

11.

Fit 18 %t B 32 ()

MR ()

(b)  RIEE20085F1 518 A A P @
Bk (B8 & [2008]1125%) © i & A10%H) &
EEMAEHEARNENS FTEYEL ER
kg EMAMERERIREENRS -
ZARBEEREMBERRCDEIRE KR
MR EMBEBHNHRBERE AT ARE
22,000,0007T °

FRER
AR RHEE A GREA R B ERT TR
PEAT BB

Year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBEFT
Earnings: B
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic ANt EERER
earnings per share (profit for the year BT e 2 7
attributable to owners of the Company) (ARAIEE A
FEMEFREF) 28,247 7,123
Numbers of shares: RRHBE
Weighted average numbers of ordinary shares for ANt EERER
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per BFREEREA
share 1,000,000,000 815,753,425

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 has been adjusted retrospectively for the effect of the
group reorganisation and Capitalisation Issue (set out in note
24) as if the group reorganisation and Capitalisation Issue had
been completed on 1 January 2017.

No diluted earnings per share for both 2018 and 2017 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
for both 2018 and 2017.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during 2018 (2017: nil).

12.

B EEHET2017F12A8318 L EEFKHE
ABANETRARKECOREERARERL
BT (HRM 24 EXEMFEERTE  JH
MEBEEHERERNMEITER2017F1A1H
FERK °

MR2018F 201 7F B\ EF D 1T L@k
HMR2018F R2017F W A 25 BEREBER
F o

iR B
20184 » ARRIMEST NRERT MR E
FHIEBBE(2017F : &) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F12A318 It F[E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BERRZKE

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor fixtures and
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment Total
BHH -
g HEWEXEE RE RERRE Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFTT ARBTT AR¥TT AREBTT
Cost AR AR
At 1 January 2017 2017F1A18 6,599 318 657 491 8,065
Additions NE — — 173 422 595
At 31 December 2017 20179 12H318 6,599 318 830 913 8,660
Additions nE 210 — 361 974 1,545
At 31 December 2018 2018%F12A31H 6,809 318 1,191 1,887 10,205
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2017 2017F1A1H (4,665) (16) (553) (393) (5,627)
Provided for the year FREE (284) (15) (44) (59) (402)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H (4,949) (31) (597) (452) (6,029)
Provided for the year FRBE (291) (15) (116) (255) (677)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H (5,240) (46) (713) (707) (6,706)
Carrying amount AR (B
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 1,569 272 478 1,180 3,499
At 31 December 2017 20174912 A31H 1,650 287 233 461 2,631

g BERBEEEHRESEEN
HERERUTEERE :

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking into account their
residual values, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining lease term of land and useful life of
buildings of 20 years

B'F R U TR EATE HA B TR A HI20F BV E A

Leasehold improvements 20.00%

HEMEEE

Motor vehicles 24.25%

E

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 19.40%-32.33%

B KERERE
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RMB’000
ARBFT

Fair value A¥HE
At 1 January 2017 2017F1H1H 5,270
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties REMEATFEZS W= 140
At 31 December 2017 201712 H31H 5,410
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties WEMERNTFEZGH K 250
At 31 December 2018 2018412 831H 5,660

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals are measured using fair value model and is
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 have been arrived at
on the basis of valuation carried out by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited (a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group.

The Group engaged the third party qualified valuer to perform
the valuation. The Directors work closely with the qualified
external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The fair value of investment properties are derived using the
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method is by
reference to market comparable with adjustments to reflect the
additions and locations of the subject properties.

In measuring the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

AEBENELHERERIEERESHYE
BaR A PEEAGE  DBRIEREY
o,

R2017FK%2018F 12 A318 - AEBEKEY
ENATEREAEETEBENBLGE
BEEHEMBETEEFHBEBERAA
(BBRAEMEZeg8)MHEER -

AEBZERE=TEERMEEMETHE -
EEHAERIINPEEMZYAE R
B EE W b E Rl B -

REVENRTVTEEEBERLEEMG - B
BELBESEM S AL B EL(EHRE
ARBRIZE Y E KA D R E -

AEMENRTER  MENRS RKER
BABERR-

TREJEHABEXSEREMELTFENT
EMEM (FRRMEANGETEREA
HB)MBEATFEFENEARBOTE
ERESATFEAENENRFEER-
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At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H

Relationship of

Investment properties Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable inputs

held by the Group Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
RERER BERARABE TUBREAHE

AEEFBRENE NYEER XL PN ¢ BARE EATLENER

Investment properties Level 3 Direct comparison method  Site unit rate, using An increase in the site
(Carrying amount: The key input is: direct market comparable unit rate used would
RMB5,660,000) Site unit rate and taking into account  result in a same

of time, location and percentage increase in

individual factors such as the fair value

size and quantum of measurement of the

properties, of RMB552/ investment properties

sg.m. and vice versa.
REME F=/ BRLEUA BBl E RAE MERSHELMLE
(BREE TEBWARER: BEWMSALBERYF LASSHRENE
A R #5,660,0007T) 5 B b & R mEMEME ATEFELAER

SR ES
REE BARESST
Sk

BB RZIRA -

At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H

Relationship of

Investment properties Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable inputs

held by the Group Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input(s) to fair value
RERER ERFUEE TABEEBAYE

rEERERENE NYEER EX:3 PN ¢ BARE BATLENER

Investment properties Level 3 Direct comparison method  Site unit rate, using An increase in the site
(Carrying amount: The key input is: direct market comparable unit rate used would
RMB5,410,000) Site unit rate and taking into account  result in a same

of time, location and percentage increase in

individual factors such as the fair value

size and quantum of measurement of the

properties, of RMB528/  investment properties

sg.m. and vice versa.
REME E=/ BRLBUA GuELLE RAE MERGHEMLE
(BREE TEBWAHBER: EWSALBERYF LASSHRENE
AR #5,410,0007T) i B bR RERHE - mEMEME ATEFELAER

There were no transfers into and out of Level 3 in both years.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

FIEZ - flmy R E

LEE  AARMES8T

SRR,

Hh - RZIRA -
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Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engaged third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. The Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt

valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.

RNFEFERGEBRR
HHAAEEREVENRTER  AEEE
FEREENTZABREEE - HALEE K
MBABE AEEEZRE=T/EKRM
EEAREENREMEGLE - AEEEE
RERLEAFE KB ABE DAEREA
BEAAEBMESOABERREES - ML
BE_QNBABE AEENSRAERE
=R A BUR O E R

Prepaid
lease Landscape Development

payments facilities costs Total
BANESE SERIE BRERA Bt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBFIT AR®FT ARBFIT ARBFT

Cost N
At 1 January 2017 201791818 8,557 616 830 10,003
Additions WNE — 2,581 — 2,581
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H 8,557 3,197 830 12,584
Additions NE — 345 — 345
At 31 December 2018 20184 12A31H 8,557 3,542 830 12,929

Amortisation o
At 1 January 2017 20171 A1H (2,923) (35) (284) (3,242)
Provided for the year & R (171) (62) (17) (250)
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H (3,094) (97) (301) (3,492)
Provided for the year % N & (171) (168) (17) (356)
At 31 December 2018 20184 12A31H (3,265) (265) (318) (3,848)

Carrying amount BREE

At 31 December 2018 2018 12A31H 5,292 3,277 512 9,081
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H 5,463 3,100 529 9,092

The prepaid lease payments have definite useful lives and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 50

years.

BENHE A ERFHAR - LEKEARS0F
THEIA# I -
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15. CEMETERY ASSETS (continued)

16.

Landscape facilities represent the construction cost of arbors
and bridges in the mausoleum. Amortisation for landscape
facilities is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the remaining lease term of land or useful life, which is 20
years.

Development costs represent the costs paid for the foundation
work and putting the land into the condition ready for
development of cemetery business. Amortisation for
development costs is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life (same as prepaid lease payments over the
lease term).

Upon commencement of development of an area within the
cemetery, the proportionate cemetery assets are transferred to
inventories.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

15. EEEE »)

16.

REREEEEDRERIBREOEREA
SERMEABGER TR ERE B AT 2 A
FHFENREEREE -

FRANERBETIRERAFELMTAER
B[R A O R T S RO RAS o 3R AN DA
BERZEANGR A ERFH (ERARNTEN
MEAR) REHEH#H -

ERAXSRARERR BEEEERLA
HEEFE-

BAFEFTABERNEREE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt ARETF T

Unlisted investment: FELETHRE
— equity securities — BRARE S

8,845 —

At 31 December 2017, the Group has 10% and 5.78% equity
interests in Huimin Town Bank Co., Ltd of Anci District,
Langfang City (Bsth & X @ B RERITERM AR A A) and
Suburban Rural Credit Cooperatives of Langfang City (E835 0
¥ 2B A2 A BB 4L) respectively. The Group is not able to
assign any director to the board of directors of these investees
to exercise significant influence over these investees. As such,
these investments are classified as available-for-sale
investments and measured at cost less impairment at 31
December 2017. At the date of initial application of IFRS 9 on
1 January 2018, these investments were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to financial assets at FVTPL. On
24 August 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose the entire equity interests in Suburban Rural Credit
Cooperatives of Langfang City to a third party at a
consideration of RMB76,000,000. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the amount of loss on fair value changes of
financial assets at FVTPL of RMB2,796,000 was charged to
profit or loss. Details of the valuation of the financial assets at
FVTPL are set out in note 27(c).
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R2017F128318 > REB S RIEF A ™
ZRERERNEBERITRODER AR REHT
38 B ATE A YEBE£10% M2 5.78% A% 4 » A
EETRER LA ERSEHNEETSInE
EOUEZEREHRITEERTE T -
o EMlRESE AR HEERE - K2017
F12A3MBRKA R ET £ - K2018F 1A
THE XA E®EERFESGR A%
BMFERERTHEEREETHSBAER
FEGFAEZH SR EE - R2018F8A24
B A%EFTYm@mAE = HERBHM
WA ENERAEBEH 2 IE  REA
AR #76,000,0007T ° IRELE2018F12A31H
EFE BAFFAEBSENEREEATE
EHEE B ARE2,796,000 A IEH I - B
I AT A ABERNeREENHEFSH
RETEE27() ©
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The deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and REERAFERBAFERRBNELERIE
movements thereon during the current and prior years are as BELEEHNOT :
follows:
Withholding Fair value
tax on dividend Fair value  change on
declared by  change on financial
a PRC subsidiary investment assets at
but not yet paid properties FVTPL Total
BAFE
W E A E FFAEEDN
EREHAZNT REVED TREE
WRENEHNH L2FESE LFEZH Bt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETREZ ARBTRT AR®TR

At 1 January 2017 2017F1H1H — 75 — 75
Charge to profit or loss 18 = 1 BR
(note 10) (K 3E10) 2,200 35 — 2,235
At 31 December 2017 2017512 A31H 2,200 110 — 2,310
Fair value gain on equity NS
securities upon initial AERIEIR & -
application of IFRS 9 EEEESN
SRR — — 4,085 4,085
At 1 January 2018 2018F1H1H
(restated) (e &E75) 2,200 110 4,085 6,395
Charge/(credit) to profit ik i=Egil] s
or loss (note 10) (%) (FF5E10) — 63 (4,373) (4,310)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 2,200 173 (288) 2,085
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of M2018F12A318 * A B RE AR IEEE
RMB160,000 (31 December 2017: RMB29,000) available for B AR160,00070 (2017F12 8318 : AR
offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2018, unused #£29,0007T) + AT A LABK S R RO ) 742018
tax loss of RMB160,000 (31 December 2017: RMB29,000) had F12A318 - @\ EETER AR SOR AR -
not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future I AR E) A BIEE B A K %160,0007T
profit streams. (20174128318 : AR#¥29,0007T) °
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17.

18.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 17. ELEBIE (&)
The following unrecognised PRC income tax losses has fixed THEEEINHENRBERTEMEHER
expiry date, which will be expired in the following year: PSR AT FE 58 -
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
31 December 2022 20224F12A31H 29 29
31 December 2023 2023F12A31H 131 —
Total HET 160 29
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BB ERSERE - B2008F1A1H
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC iR AR BT B A E B E AR & A S R AR
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation BAGMNIEIR o B R %K B R 8215 i B i
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial EEBEMEK  BZEREBENTRRK
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to A EE T EEE D - R AT RN B AT RS
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to s A E (5 ER B = &8 A R %50,990,0007T
RMB50,990,000 (31 December 2017: RMB14,355,000) as the (20174124318 : A & ¥14,355,00070) i
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the A OB 1 R AE IR E R IR BB o 720184
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary 12A31H - BEEARERELEHIBEEEAAR
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The #5,099,0007T (20179128318 : A R %
corresponding unrecognised deferred tax liabilities as at 31 1,436,0007T) °
December 2018 was RMB5,099,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,436,000).
INVENTORIES 18. #&
At 31 December
R12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARBFT
Burial plots i 675 897
Tombstones =1 1,066 1,963
Others HA 260 677
2,001 3,537
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19. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. BARERE M EWKIE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T
Staff advance BT8R 30 40
Prepayments ST/ 106 77
Others HAh 329 195
465 312

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carried interest at market interest rate ranging
from 0.30% to 0.35% per annum as at 31 December 2018
(31 December 2017: 0.30% to 0.35% per annum). RMB is not
a freely convertible currency in the international market. The
exchange rate of RMB is determined by the government of the
PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the government of

the PRC.

The Group's bank balances and cash are denominated in the

following currencies:

20. RITEREBE S

2018FN2A3IB - RITHEBEBFENT
0.30% %0.35% K T 35 F| & 5+ 2 (2017412
A318 : #F N F0.30%£0.35% ) - AR
RAARBEEMSERERNEE - ARK
RIERABPBRBTEE 8% SHEEDF
Bl 5 H B R T 5 00 B9 BE BRI AR IR o

REBERTEHANLBRE S AT EEHE

At 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETF T
Denominated in RMB AR E 138,340 30,624
Denominated in HK$ LA JTEHE 53,072 51,096
191,412 81,720
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EZREMENRE
At 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
Trade payables H 5 N RIE 1,043 2,353
Advances from customers BEP B — 9,141
Accrued expenses FEET X 8,427 8,626
Accrued initial public offering expenses BAFERDMABEERX — 1,065
9,470 21,185
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented LTASREHARREZANEINESE
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting NRENRER DT :
period:

At 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
Less than 1 year 1F 1A 922 2,230
1 to 2 years 15824 25 27
2 to 3 years 2E34F = 33
Over 3 years 3F 96 63
1,043 2,353
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. N EE
Contract liabilities (recorded in deferred income and advances EHEEBREFERHRARLTKRARES
from customers within trade and other payables in prior years) REMEMNREBEROHE P EMNRIE) BIRE
represent the obligations to transfer burial plots and cemetery WHERREREBSEEEEE R ER M
maintenance services in accordance with the revenue EREE RIS o

recognition policy and the nature of the business.

At 31 December At 1 January

2018 2018*

20185 720184

12A31H 1TR1E*

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Sales of burial plots §HE B i 4,037 7,206

Provision of cemetery maintenance services 12 = B 4 # iR 15 57,756 53,642

61,793 60,848

Current mE 9,096 12,361

Non-current EM B 52,697 48,487

61,793 60,848
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the * N EY & BT e R B B A 3R 4R R

application of IFRS 15. 1558 14 KPR FR 1S o
Customers who purchase burial services are required to make B ERAEREN R ARG EREE W RNE
advance payments for maintenance fees, relating to the on- ERAEELE LI N20FENHHES  ZEHE—
going cemetery maintenance services of their burial plots and MRS E A — ST o

memorials over 20 years, and such amounts are generally paid
together with the purchase of burial plots.

The following table shows how much of the revenue TERBEIRAFEFERA ABEEAYNARG
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward Mg %45 o

contract liabilities.

Provision of

cemetery

Sales of maintenance

burial plots services

HEEN RUEEEHBRY

RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBFT AR T T
Revenue recognised that was included RENFTAEHAEE
in the contract liability balance HEHHEBRKE

at the beginning of the year 3,169 34252
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 22. ERNEEW

The Group receives all the contract amounts when signing the AEERREEEM RREEERGERS R
contracts with customers on sales of burial plots and provision EPHEZEHNBUBMEHENEE K56
of cemetery maintenance services. Transaction price is BIEAHBYNEEEENHEE B
allocated between sales of burial plots and the maintenance RE2EOR - "HEEZZFERBFHRZERE
services on a relative standalone selling price basis. The REXBEERIRERRENEE - AEH
transaction price allocated to these services is recognised as a R EEINELNRGEROEE B O FE
contract liability at the time of the initial sales transaction. The MASEEREES  BNRBERSTEEE
Group considers the advance payment schemes does not ARELS  AURESEITSHEE KM
contain significant financing component and accordingly the EEMEAE-

amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of the
time value of money taking into consideration that the
payment terms were not structured primarily for the provision
of finance to the Group.

23. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 23. EHEERERMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHEREYE:
At Amounts waived At
1 January Financing by related 31 December
2018 cash flows parties (note) 2018
BHLRRYE
R2018%1781H RERERE (FaF)  H2018F12A31A
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT R ARE TR AR TR
Amount due to a related party  JE BIEE 75 508 752 (752) - —
At Amounts waived At
1 January Financing by related 31 December
2017 cash flows parties (note) 2017
BE T 2R FA
7201741818 RERGTE (F3)  R2017F12A318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBTT ARETT AREF T
Amounts due to related parties & B35 75 308 — 38,709 (37,957) 752
Note: Amounts represented non-cash transactions. W&k : RIEEIFBRERS -
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Number of shares RMB'000
i 1n 21 8 ARBFT
Ordinary shares of United States Dollar FR.01ZET([ZETD A
("US$")0.01 each il
Authorised: VETE
At 25 January 2017 (upon incorporation)  F201741H25H
(3% 7 B 37 7 ) 50,000 4
Increase on 23 May 2017 (note a) 720175 H23H # N
(M 5Fa) 2,999,950,000 205,980
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12H318 &
31 December 2018 2018 12A31H 3,000,000,000 205,984
Issue and fully paid: BITRERE
At 25 January 2017 201741 H25H 1 —
Issue of shares on 1 February 2017 R201792 818 17K M 9,999 1
Issue of shares on 27 September 2017 R20179F97278 817
(note b) Pt (Bt 5Eb ) 749,990,000 49,643
Issue of shares to the public on 27 R20179F97278 817
September 2017 (note ¢) i F AR () 250,000,000 16,548
At 31 December 2017 and M2017%F12A31H
31 December 2018 &2018%12A31H 1,000,000,000 66,192

Notes:

On 23 May 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to US$30,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 2,999,950,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
US$0.01.

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 7 September 2017 and 26 September
2017, it is resolved that conditional on the other reserve
account, retained earnings account and share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the global
offering (see note (c) below for further details), the Directors
were authorised to capitalise an amount of US$7,499,900
standing to the credit of the other reserve account, retained
earnings account and share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum to pay up in full at par 749,990,000
shares of the Company (the “Capitalisation Issue”).

On 27 September 2017, the Company issued 250,000,000
ordinary shares to the public with a par value of US$0.01 each
at the price of HK$0.28 per share by way of global offering. On
the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

R2017F5A8238 » KA A 1B # % 58 b
2,999,950,000/% & A% E {E0.01E JT /) ¥ @
B%  #55% € B% AN 18 230,000,000 7T ©

BIEARTPREN2017F9A7H 2201749
FA26H@BRHMEMAZR  FAA2AHNHE
tiEEER REABERRNEERER
HEEMESERRZ GFRBRME)  Bi#
EERBBEARANEMEHE REA
# B & A% 19 i 18 BR /Y 3 BR %87,499,900% 7T
B AR 1R EEHE749,990,00088 &~
Az BRM ([EAREIT]) -

R2017F9A27H » AR A AR ERBEEN T
X UABRO28B LA ARBITEREE
0.013% Jt A& #£250,000,0004% ¥ 3@ f% - A
B ARA®RG B R R FTGEM £ °
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Other reserve

Other reserve represented (1) the difference between the share
capital of Langfang Wantong and the cash consideration paid
for acquisition of Langfang Wantong pursuant to the group
reorganisation; (2) an amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to
Mr. Wang Jianjun by the Group which was waived by him and
accounted for as a deemed contribution to the Group and
subject to a tax charge of approximately RMB8&,125,000; (3) an
amount of RMB5,457,000 payable to Ms. Zhao Ying by the
Group which was waived by her and accounted for as a
deemed contribution to the Group; and (4) an amount of
RMB5,023,000 capitalised into share capital pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC rules and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the PRC are required
to transfer no less than 10% of their profits after taxation,
after offsetting any prior years’ loss as determined under the
China Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of a dividend to shareholders of the PRC
subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve is non-distributable other
than in liquidation and can be used to make good previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in capital
in proportion to the existing interests of equity owners,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of the registered capital.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, if
any, net of cash and cash equivalents and total equity of the
Group.

CHINA WAN TONG YUAN (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = B & 1 & (¥ %) B R 2 &

H b

HiFEE OBHERAORAEREER
WERHERAMANESRENESE : QT2
BRERBERERNEEARIAGIELIEDN
JE 1 3B A R #532,500,0007T © :ZRIEEE
BB S 40 AR ¥E8,125,0007T ¢+ (3)#4
ELTREREAEBEARIABIETED
JfE I~ FIB A R #55,457,0007T ¢ B (AR
5,023,000 IR R E AL BT HFTE AR o

A TE B R

RIEFEIE RO RER - NEBEA P
%Wi%%%“ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&iﬁ@%¢
Bgir A ETNEEBE BT R10%0
BREGRAEREATRGHE EEHE
SERRE R M E A M50% o BRE BB
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26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 26. EXEBEE @
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on AEEEEBEETHRAEALE - BEMHAE
a regular basis. As part of this review, the management Al BIREE B AR K EE AR AERE A
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with the Ei EREEENHEERR T~5EE38
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the MEEFER BOHEBXBERREGE
Group will balance its overall capital structure through raising T FEREBENERE -

of new capital, issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debts.

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. €M T A

a. Categories of financial instruments a. EBMI AN

At 31 December

®W12H31A
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BHENATEN TR
BE 191,771 —
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFAERZN
PRMEE 8,845 —
Loans and receivables (including BER R ERFIE (B
bank balances and cash) RITHEBRNIR®) = 84,013
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE — 71,300
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost B85 PR 8,639 11,978
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's financial instruments consisted of financial
assets at FVTPL, other receivables, amounts due from/to
related parties, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and available-for-sale investments. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(i) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of interest rates.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank deposits carried at prevailing
market interest rates based on or by reference to
the interest rate promulgated by the People’s Bank
of China.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis is not presented as the
management of the Group considered that the
sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards the
change in interest rate is not material to the
consolidated financial statements.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. W T A=
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. SEtEkEEEREBZFRKE®E

(continued)

(i)

Market risk (continued) (i)
Foreign currency risk

The Group collects all of the revenue in RMB and
incurs most of the expenditures as well as capital
expenditures in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Assets
BE
At 31 December
MA12H831H

2018 2017
201845 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T N

HK$ BT 53,251 53,281

45 B (%)

shE R

74 55 8 i 5 U035 4 DA N R 9
B AH5BI% RAKBIZ A
ARMEHE -

REBINEHBECEREER
EBABENRERRREER
T

Liabilities
=R
At 31 December

MA12H831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt PNE:Rw

37 1,149

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in
HK$ against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2017:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

AEBETZEEBITLARKE
TR B A -

TRFJNEMAEMEHEFT
BHERT AEEHARER
5 7E Hh S & K pA5% (20174 -
5% )MABREEZEBETEHH
BELE 5% (20174 : 5% ) A[H
NENEEBEETE A BEHRINE
BB AT ERMSELL R - I
REEEEBHEXLEHEEE
EFEHNTEH - EHESITEER
BB BN REREEBIE
B - W R & HA R ¥ o B R 4
E)5%1EH % -
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

An analysis of sensitivity to currency risk for the
Group is as follows:

5 @k (48)

SN RV B (48D

B Z 59T (4B)
REREEERBROGEE DT
mE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
Increase/(decrease) in post-tax FRBRTE R 280
profit for the year J CRD)
— if RMB weakens —REARBEABLTES
against HK$ 2,661 2,607
— if RMB strengthens —REARBEABTER
against HK$ (2,661) (2,607)
Credit risk iy f=ERRB
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s REBERKR  REBHREH X
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause ﬁa&'ﬁﬁﬁﬂ/\%ﬁlzﬁﬁlﬁyj
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to BIEAHNSSEERBKRIIEHAH
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi‘%ﬁﬁLﬁ%ﬁEﬁﬁwéﬁﬁ
arising from the carrying amount of the respective ;ﬂﬁfiﬂ’\] BF T {8 2= AE o
recognised financial assets as stated in the e "
consolidated statement of financial position.
AEENEERBEFZHAEER

The Group’s credit risk primarily relates to other
receivables, amounts due from related parties and
bank balances. The credit risk on bank balances is
limited because the bank balances are maintained
with large commercial banks in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The other receivables and amounts due from
related parties are measured on 12m ECL basis.
For the purposes of internal credit risk
management, the Group uses past due
information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
There is not past due of other receivables and no
fixed repayment terms of amounts due from
related parties. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is not
significant increased.
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b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(iii)

b. TRLEREIEER T MBXKE

Liquidity risk management (i) WEESERBRER
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRENAEFHIESTESRBE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial HESA YR - ZERBER
Iiabilitieg. The table has been drayvn up blase.dl on EEAEANZINEREBNS
the undlscounted. cash flows of flnanoal liabilities BEERMBIESAEEL -
based on the earliest date on which .the Group can =25 RS8R ASE SR
be required to pay. The table includes both - s o
: T B -GMERZEL AIKRERSE
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent = 0 3 B et
that interest flows are floating rate, the BERAMEWHROFEAR
undiscounted amount is derived based on the
interest rate outstanding at the end of the
reporting period.
Weighted Total Total
average Less than undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amount
KRBT
BeRE BRI &
nfEF R = DRE e 5t
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018  2018%12A31H
Non-derivative FITELRBEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other B 5 I H b e A
payables HR — 8,639 8,639 8,639
At 31 December 2017 20174121318
Non-derivative FTESRERE
financial liabilities
Trade and other B 5 K H fh e
payables A — 11,226 11,226 11,226
Amount due to JEE 1< B B 5 R IE
a related party — 752 752 752
Total gt 11,978 11,978 11,978
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c.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments c. SRMIAEMAFEFEZ
This note provides information about how the Group ZHFREEAAREENMAFEEH
determines fair values of its financial assets and CREERBEBEZAFENER -
liabilities.
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are THEENBENAFEREART
determined in accordance with generally accepted BEAZBRREREDNETE -

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the FEBERERREHUBHREANER
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities BEKNIENeREERABOR
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial HESEEQAFEERE -

statements approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of financial assets at FVTPL have been EATEFAERNEREEATE
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills DEREAEETHREENELEE
Valuation and Professional Services Ltd., an independent BEEMEME KN FTEHENGER
qualified professional valuer not connected with the HERMARDRMETHMHEH -
Group.
The following table gives information about how the fair TRETEBEBUINETEMEEAT
values of these financial assets are determined (in B ER (CHE 2 G ERMNRATAN&H
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used). ABIR) ©
Fair value
as at
31 December Valuation techniques  Significant
Financial assets 2018 Fair value hierarchy and key inputs unobservable input(s)
H2018%
1283181 EERMK
CREE AYE AFEER FEHABE BEARABEERAHE
RMB'000
AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL — 8,845 Level 3 Market approach: based P/B ratio: 0.92 (note)
unlisted equity E=/ on the target companies’ DLOM: 30%
investment financial performance mEEE : 0.92(K5)
BATEFABENER and the multiples of B mS BT E:
BE — FLETRAR comparable companies.  30%
& The key inputs are: (1)

Price to book ratio ("P/B
ratio”) (2) Discount for
lack of marketability
("DLOM")

migE  EREEAF
FBRARUTELRD
A FEHAHE
AB()mEX(mE
K] QBzmisnEE
(g msnmit
&l
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 27. €M I R
c.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments ¢ =RIEMNAFEF=E

(continued)

Note: An increase in the P/B ratio used in isolation would result Wek: EBEAOTREENEEREA
in an increase in the fair value measurement of the FEFABEHEHEER FER
financial assets at FVTPL, and vice versa. A 5% increase/ M RZIPR-MAEEMES
decrease in the P/B ratio holding all other variables TE TR RGO 5% % E B
constant would increase/decrease the carrying amount of HREEBEBEEM BRI ARE
the investment by RMB442,000. 442,0007T °

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RAFEFENEE

Financial assets

at FVTPL

BEAFEFTA

BEENEmEE

Closing balance at 31 December 2017 M2017F 1231 W E R & 8 —
Reclassification ENNME

From available-for-sale investments BRIt HERE 71,300
Remeasurement EHFFE

From cost less impairment to fair value BRARREZERTE 16,341

Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1718 & B4 4 & 87,641

Loss on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL A FEF ABZHN S REE

NEFEZEEIE (2,796)

Disposal & (76,000)

Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 4310 M B R 4 #4 8,845
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties held by
the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for two
years with fixed rental.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases:

REHERIE
AKEBEALEA

R2018F12A31H ' AEBEHFHERIAESHN
REWEBRBLIINAMFRNER  HE£E

F oo

BEHPRR  AEERBETAUTREHLEHORE
BEPRIA T REZKEBRE R

At 31 December

M12H831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Within one year —FR 200 200
In the second to the fifth year, inclusive F_FRERF
(BRIEERWE) 200 400
400 600
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EREIE
At 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt AREF T
Contracted but not provided for in the BETHERR
consolidated financial statements: EH SRR
— Expenditure in respect of equipment — REFENAX — 465
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

31.

The employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC Government.
The Group is required to contribute 20% of the total monthly
basic salaries of its current employees to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB297,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB204,000), represented contributions paid and/or payable to
the scheme by the Group for the reporting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances as at the end of the reporting period with related
parties:

(@) Amounts due from related parties

The Group had amounts receivable from the following
related parties and the details are set out below:

30. RIRBRIGHE

31.

AEBREETEBRAMEFEREERK
BAGTEINKE - AEEARREREEH
ERF & AR R20% [A) R R 48 5 81 R
REBRNREHRES HERAKBNIM
FoARENE-BEERELEEMRRK-

B E2018F12A31BLEFE  ReafEak
Hth2mBaRmRMBOEXN IO BEARKE
297,0007T (20174 : A R #204,0007T) * 2
REERBEHANRZTE DN Rk EN

B R o

BB SR 57
RS 8RBT 2 58

(a) FEYRAES )7 SRR

MRS BIR - AR S B B YWA T BB
ZHRERFEWT

At 31 December

R12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBFT
Company controlled by REREEEEEGZAA
Mr. Wang Jianjun (note): (M%) -
FRAREEXEMBAERAER QDA FEERREXETHEERE
(China VAST Industrial Urban BRAF
Development Co., Ltd.) = 2,057

REER AT :
FRER

Ultimate holding company:
Tai Shing International
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@) Amounts due from related parties (continued)

All amounts due from related parties are non-trade
nature and were denominated in RMB, unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. The following
information is disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622), which requires compliance with section 161B
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32):

(a)

31. SRS

JfE s 78 Bk 5 SROE (48)
FreERKEE T RBEYHBIEE S EE
RUARKESE 8K\ 28872
REREZ FHERECRLEZAH
BFISsRR A B B B EUE - AT
BERHE BB (R AHERIN(E622% ) 78
1EMTR1TFTE K - BB B (A K
BIN(EE32FE) F161BIFIEH I &

Maximum amount outstanding
At 31 December

BEAEELEMN28318
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Company controlled by EEEEE?EEE? il
Mr. Wang Jianjun: /N
FEEZFEEFMHELRAR AR qﬂi—if‘%%?ﬁiﬁ%@z
(China VAST Industrial Urban BRRA A
Development Co., Ltd.) 2,057 2,057
Ultimate holding company: &EERA
Tai Shing International @lﬁ%—\ 1 1
Note: Mr. Wang Jianjun is the husband of the Ultimate MEE: TRESERZELIERBREAILK -
Controlling Shareholder.
(b) Amount due to a related party (b) JE T BAES T FKIE
At 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder: RAPERARER ¢
Ms. Zhao Ying HEZ L — 752

The amount due to a related party is non-trade nature
and was denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand. The amount has been fully
repaid during the year.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(Q)

Related party transaction

The Group had the following transaction with its related
party:

31. BEER XX B ()
(0 BEBAIXRS
AEBEEHSETATRS

Year ended 31 December

Fellow subsidiary:
CES(P=SPNC]
BHTHEFLEREERAR
(Langfang City Property Development Co., Ltd.)

BZE12AMBLEE

Nature of 2018 2017
transaction 20184 20174
REME RMB’000 RMB'000

AR Tt BN:RPP
Purchase of

a motor vehicle

BEA — 30

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement to acquire the
entire equity interest in Langfang Wantong from the
original shareholders of Langfang Wantong for a cash
consideration of RMB55,500,000. On 18 August 2017,
Mr. Wang lJianjun provided a loan amounting to
RMB46,835,000 to the Group to settle this consideration
payable, and on 30 August 2017, he agreed to waive an
amount of RMB32,500,000 payable to him by the Group
which was accounted for as a deemed contribution to
the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and chief executive, who
are also key management, is disclosed in note 9.

(d) REZ2017F12A3MHIEFE KA &E
B KERE BB BERERERRE
WERHEREDKRE BeXREBS
A R #¥55,500,0007T ° 7220178 H18
B ITEEA4EmMAEEREERA
R #£46,835,0007C * LA EBREMRIE
Mmm2017F8A308 » FREH R AR
DI ESERAEB TENAELEBER
% 2 718 A R #32,500,0007C °

TEEEABFH
EERESTRAR(ABRTRERE
JE) H9 #r BI 70 Y REOH BR
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. KRR BEMRRERREE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25
January 2017 and became the holding company of the Group
as at 14 March 2017. Information about the statement of
financial position and movements in the reserves of the
Company were as follows:

ANABR2017F1A25B EH S BB MK
3o WH2017F3R 148 B A A E B ZE KA
Al BAARRPBEMRARLNEFEEHD
ARWT

At 31 December

M2A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 48 —
Investment in a subsidiary wEWE QT = —
48 —
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Dividend receivable ' U RR B 19,800 19,800
Prepayments and other receivables TE A RRIE B H At JRE R IR 117 77
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U B B8 A B3I = 2
Amounts due from related parties & IR B8 B 5 SR — 2,058
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 52,742 50,788
72,659 72,725
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H b fE A FE 28 340
Amount due to a related party FE A5 BA B 5 3E = 752
Amounts due to subsidiaries BRI E R A KA 2,374 2,910
2,402 4,002
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEE 70,257 68,723
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #BEERABEE 70,305 68,723
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE
Share capital N 66,192 66,192
Reserves B 4,113 2,531
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 70,305 68,723
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32. A BB R REL EE @
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movements in the Company’s reserves RARHEEE
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R 43 % B Hip REEA st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 25 January 2017 (the date of M201751H25H

incorporation) (B3 B E) — — — —
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMEEE

income for the year Iz 4 8 — o 11,876 11,876
Issue of new shares to the public [ AR EITH D 42,760 o — 42,760
Transaction costs attributable to BATH L BARFE(S

issue of new ordinary shares 2 5 KA (7,485) — — (7,485)
Capitalisation issue of shares BEARLFETRMD

(note 24) (K 7E24) (35,275) (5,023) (9,345) (49,643)
Waiver of debt owed to BefgREEL T

Ms. Zhao Ying &8 — 5,023 — 5,023
At 31 December 2017 72017412 H31H — — 2,531 2,531
Profit and total comprehensive F RN &2 E RS

income for the year R — - 1,582 1,582
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H — — 4,113 4,113
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As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has direct
and indirect equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

RBERR RARFAEUTHERARNE

B R M BORE

Shareholding/

Principal activities

TEEK

Sales of burial plots,
provision of other
burial-related services
and cemetery
maintenance services

EEEMMEREMEN
RS R EE4E
R %

Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
REER

Provision of funeral service

Issued and equity interests
Place and the date fully paid attributable to
of incorporation/ capital/registered the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment capital At 31 December
SR B BRTRHME R2A3AERLAFER
WEAR AR RBH BX/AMER FREHRE
2018 2017
20185 |VINES
Langfang Wantong PRC RMB32,000,000 100% 100%
26 November 2007
Es 5 & i AR #32,000,0007C 100% 100%
2007%11A26H
Wan Tong HK HK HK$1 100% 100%
18 January 2017
B (&%) Bt BT 100% 100%
2017F1R18H
Shing Sheng International Limited*  BVI Us$1 100% 100%
27 January 2017
EERRERRR RERKEE (B 100% 100%
2017F1R278
Wantongyuan Investment PRC US$10,000,000 100% 100%
2 March 2017
EWERE i 10,000,000 7t 100% 100%
201753424
BHmERBEEREERLA PRC RMB500,000 100% 100%
(Langfang City Wantong Funeral 23 March 2017
Services Co., Ltd.)**
BomEmBEEREERRA e AR #500,0007T 100% 100%
2017F3A23H

Notes:
* Directly-held by the Company
* English name for identification only

The Group does not have any subsidiaries issuing debt

securities during the year and at the end of the reporting
period.
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